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PART |
Iltem 1. Busines:

World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc. (“WWEI$ an integrated media and entertainment compargyh#e been involved in the sp
entertainment business for more than 25 yearshawe developed World Wrestling Entertainment inte of the most popular brands in glc
entertainment today. We develop unique and creativeent centered around our talent and presentedrdive and televised events. At
heart of our success are the athletic and ententain skills and appeal of our WWE Superstars andcousistently innovative and multi-
faceted storylines across our branéischored by these brands, we are able to leverageantent and talent across virtually all medideis
Our live and televised events, consumer produdtgtatl media and feature film outlets provide sfiggant crosspromotion and marketir
opportunities that reinforce our brands while effedy reaching our fans.

“WWE" refers to World Wrestling Entertainmeinic. and its subsidiaries, unless the contextrotise requires. References to “we,” “us,”
“our” and the “Company’refer to WWE and its subsidiaries. World WrestliBgtertainment and the stylized and highly distiretiVorlc
Wrestling Entertainment scratch logo are two of wademarks. This report also contains other WWadmarks and trade names as we
those of other companies. All trademarks and tredees appearing in this report are the properthiaf respective holders.

Our operations are centered around the following far business segments:

Live and Televised Entertainment

e Revenues consist principally of ticket sales te Imvents, sales of merchandise at these live evewision rights fees, sales
television advertising and sponsorships, and feesiéwing our pay-per-view and video on demandypranming.

Consumer Products

e Revenues consist principally of the direct saleSMWE produced home videos and magazine publishirtrayalties or license fe
related to various WWE themed products such aovi@enes, toys and books.

Digital Media

e Revenues consist principally of advertising salesoor websites, sale of merchandise on our welisitigh our WWEShop interr
storefront and sales of various broadband and mabihtent.

WWE Studios

e Revenues consist of receipts from the distributérdilmed entertainment featuring our Superstars.dite, we have partnered v
major studios to distribute our productions. We éhaecently announced plans to gsdiftribute our future filmed entertainm
productions beginning in 2010.

Live and Televised Entertainment
(represents 70%, 63% and 65% of our net revenues iB009, 2008 and 2007, respectively)
Live Events

Our Raw Superstars travel as one touring showewhit SmackDown and ECW Superstars travel togethercombined tour. This giy
us flexibility in scheduling that allows us to playmerous domestic and international markets. eivents and television programming are
principal creative content and production actigti©ur creative team develops compelling and compleracters and weaves them
dynamic storylines that combine physical and enmaticelements. Storylines are usually played outhim ring and unfold on our weel
television shows, and culminate in our monthly pay-view events.

In 2009, we held 268 live events throughout Ndktherica, entertaining over one million fans at amrage ticket price of $37.64. \
hold many of our live events at major arenas acthescountry. In addition to providing the contdat our television and pay-peiew
programming, these events provide us with a rea¢-tassessment of the popularity of our storylimescharacters.
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In 2009, we held 74 live events internationallgaching approximately 600,000 fans at an averadettprice of $66.08. These eve
were spread over several successful internationas throughout Europe, Latin America and Australia

Live events net revenues were $108.8 million, $208illion and $99.3 million, representing 23%, 2@¥d 20% of total net revenue:
2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Venue Merchandise

Our venue merchandise business consists cfaleeof various WWE-branded products at our livengs, such as $hirts, caps and otf
novelty items, which feature our Superstars andiar logo. Nearly all of these products are desighgdour inhouse creative staff a
manufactured by third parties.

Venue merchandise net revenues were $19.8 mil#iaB8,5 million and $19.1 million, representing 4%tatal net revenues in each
2009, 2008 and 2007.

Television Programming

Relying on our irkouse production capabilities at our technologycaliivanced, high definition production facility, vpeoduce seve
hours of original weekly programming, 52 weeks pear. This programming is distributed domesticaigernationally and via WWE.col
Our domestic programs are: “Monday Night RAW” onAJBetwork, Telemundo, mun2 and Universal HD; “A.RAW” on USA Network
“Friday Night SmackDown” on MyNetworkTV; “ECW" onhe Syfy Channel; and “WWE Superstasi WGN America. WWE prograr
reach 16.3 million total viewers during the averageek. USA Network and the SyFy Channel are owneNBC Universal.

“Monday Night RAW” is a twdiour primetime program that is broadcast live orAUNREtwork. It is among the most watched regul
scheduled programs on primetime cable televisioth amchors USA, helping make it a togted network. RAW also airs in replays
Telemundo, mun2 and Universal HD.

Our two-hour “Friday Night SmackDown” airs driyNetworkTV in primetime on Fridays. SmackDown isettoprated broadca
program on Friday nights among male viewers, indgdhe key male 12-17, Men 18-34, Men 18-49 anch 2854 demographics, and is
most-watched program on MyNetworkTV among all keyndgraphics.

“ECW” is among the topated programs on Syfy among households, totaletis\and all key male demographics. It also ranksnanthe
top 10 regularly scheduled cable programs on Tuesiigts among Men 254 and also runs replays on Universal HD and mBeginning ir
February 2010, the ECW television program was mggavith WWENXT, a hybrid live event/reality show.

“WWE Superstars” is the most watched progranWiGN America among households, total viewers dnkest demographics.

Each year, more than 7,500 hours of W¥/television programming can be seen in more tH&ncbuntries and 30 languages arount
world. Our broadcast partners include: BSkyB inth& Ten Sports in India, and J SPORTS in Japamnrgmmany others.

The Company has announced that it is in the estdges of exploring the formation of a WWE netwask an additional vehicle
distribute our programming content.

Television rights fee net revenues were $111.9anjl $100.7 million and $92.4 million, represemti@4%, 19% and 19% of total |
revenues in 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Advertising
We provide sponsorships in the US domestic madkateet the needs of our advertisers. Through thgsasorships, we offer advertis
a full range of our promotional vehicles, includiimgernet and print advertising, arena signageaiorannouncements and pay-péew

sponsorship. In Canada, we sell advertising inppagrams rather than receive a rights fee.

Advertising and sponsorship net revenues were 8iillfon, $7.4 million and $5.9 million, represemgj 2%, 1% and 1% of total 1
revenues in 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.




Pay-Per-View Programming

WWE has been the world’s pre-eminent provifguay-per-view programming for the past 25 yehr2009, WWE televised 14 live pay-
perview events which consistently rank among the rsgjiselling live event programs in the industry. €istent with industry practices,
share the revenues with cable systems and saltitéders such as DirecTV, and pay service feaBIREMAND and TVN. WWE's annue
crown jewel, WrestleMania, repeatedly achieves more than one million buysldwede. On April 5, 2009, WWE celebrated the =
Anniversary ofWrestleManiain Houston, TX before a sold-out crowd with millowatching at home. The 25th AnniversarywéfestleMani
achieved more than one million buys and genergtpdoaimately $22.5 million in pay-per-view revenue.

WWE produced 14 domestic pay-per-view programboth 2009 and 2008. The suggested domestid piae for all pay-periew
events in 2009 was $39.95, with the exceptioiVoéstleManiawhich had a suggested domestic retail price of #&A4AVe have increased i
suggested retail price to $44.95 for pay-per-vieents other thalVrestleManigbeginning in January 2010

Our international pay-petiew partners include SKY in the United Kingdomemiiere in Germany, SKY Perfect TV! in Japan, SK3i#
in Italy and Main Event in Australia, among manjers.

Pay-periew net revenues were $80.0 million, $91.4 millemd $94.3 million, representing 17%, 17% and 19%i@l net revenues
2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively .

WWE Classics On Demand

WWE Classics On Demand is a Subscription Vid@oDemand (SVOD) service that offers highly-raé@d bestelling classic televisic
shows, pay-peview events, specials and original programmingdamnonthly subscription fee. Most of this matermldrawn from WWE
extensive video library and includes other leadimgstling brands. WWE owns and controls the confemin the vast libraries of su
promotions as WCW, WCCW and AWA. WWE Classics omiaad subscribers have access to approximately 4 lob content each month.

WWE Classics On Demand is currently distributethvii4 of the top 15 cable operators in the UniteteS, making WWE Classics
Demand available to more than 80 percent of videolemand enabled subscribers. Major North Americatridutors currently includ
Comcast Communications, Cox Communications, Cha&mmmunications, Cablevision, Mediacom, and Verif&mmmunications, amo|
others.

WWE Classics On Demand net revenues were $5.&€mith 2009, $6.3 million in 2008 and $4.9 millian2007, representing 1% of tc
net revenues in each of 2009, 2008 and 2007.

Consumer Products
(represents 21%, 26% and 24% of our net revenues iR009, 2008 and 2007, respectively)
Licensing

We have established a worldwide licensing progtesing our World Wrestling Entertainment marks aogols, copyrighted works a
characters on a large variety of retail productsiuding toys, video games, apparel and books.ebtly, we have relationships with more t
160 licensees worldwide that provide products &e &t major retailers. To maintain the distinctiigle and quality of our intellectual prope
and brand, we retain creative approval over th@gdepackaging, advertising and promotional mate@&sociated with these products.

Videogames and toys represent important comporedraar licensing program. During 2009, we setididpending litigation with THC
Inc. (“THQ”) and Jakks Pacific, Inc. and announeedew multiyear videogame license with THQ effective JanuarQL0. January 1, 20:
is also the effective date of our new comprehensiudti-year licensingagreement with Mattel, Inc. as our new master i@gnksee covering i
global territories.

We have publishing licensing agreements with Siro&chuster, Dorling Kindersley, and Titan, whichow us to publish origini
content in a variety of genres and formats, incigdiction, histories, howe, comics, and biographies and autobiographiesing2009, w:
published eight new books, including the New Yoik&s bestselling WWE Encyclopedia, the autobiogyaphRey Mysterio (Rey Mysteri
Behind the Mask), a history of D-Generation X (Afeu Ready? The Unauthorized History ofG@neration X), and beginning reader bc
profiling WWE Superstars John Cena, Undertakepléid, and CM Punk.
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Music is an integral part of the entertainmerperience surrounding WWE'’s live events, tel@risprograms and pay-peiews. We
compose and record most of our music, including Superstar entrance themes, in our recording stuiaddition to our own compos
music, we license music performed by popular artistusic links the WWE brand to all media platforimsluding television, film, radio, vide
games, live events and other emerging digital teldgies. In addition to composing, producing, aadording most of our music, includi
Superstar and Diva entrance themes, WWE Music Glicepses commercial music for use across a vadégable television and pay-per-
view programming needs.

WWE programming and WWE.com have music wovefrom up-andsoming artists across the board, thus maintainimgcommitmer
to developing artists and providing a platform &wareness to an audience to which they might notxdpesed through traditional rec
company marketing.

Licensing net revenues, including musieere $44.7 million, $60.5 million and $47.1 milliorepresenting 9%, 11% and 10% of tota
revenues in 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Home Videc
In 2009, we released 28 new home video préahgtand shipped approximately 3.5 million DVD aBldi-ray units, including catalc
titles released in prior years. In September 200%endi Entertainment became our home video distdh replacing Genius Products, LI

Outside the United States, our new releases aatbgditles are distributed through licensees.

Home video net revenues were $39.4 million, $58illion and $53.7 million, representing 8%, 11% alitho of total net revenues
2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Magazine Publishin

WWE Magazinis a global mers lifestyle publication with native language edisan Spain, Mexico, France, Germany and Greecery
issue is filled with features, photos, exclusiveeimiews and access that fans will not see on igt@v. In the USWWE Magazinés rankei
“top-5" in retail revenue for the mes'category, averaging more than $1.0 million in s&and sales every month. On average, more th.
million readers purchas&@WE Magazinevery month. OUWWE Kidsmagazine was launched in April 2008 and publisteedigsues in 200
WWE Kidsalso has licensed editions in the UK and Germany.

Magazine publishing net revenues were $13.5 millg15.4 million and $16.5 million, representing 8%iotal net revenues in 2009, 2
and 2007.

Digital Media
(represents 7%, 7% and 7% of our net revenues in Z®, 2008 and 2007, respectively)
WWE.com

WWE utilizes the Internet to promote our brandgate a community experience among our fans, mametdistribute our online a
mobile products and sell online advertising. Oumpry website, WWE.com, attracted an average o Million monthly unique visito
worldwide. These visitors viewed an average of nmthem 423 million pages and approximately 22.0iotillvideo streams per month. W\
wallpapers, ringtones, voicetones and videos améadble through our mobile partnership with AT&T.

WWE currently has local language websites in 3dntges worldwide where fans can get the WWE exgmee in their own languag
Worldwide presence includes Japan, China, Italyfugal, Spain, India and all of Latin America wilhcal websites recently launchec

Germany and France.

WWE.com net revenues were $16.8 million, $16.3iomland $16.2 million, representing 4%, 3% and 8Ptotal net revenues in 20!
2008 and 2007, respectively.

WWEShop
WWEShop is our e-commerce storefront. WWEShrmressed over 300,000 orders during 2009 as ceupar329,200 in 2008.

WWEShop net revenues were $16.0 million, $18.8ioniland $18.6 million, representing 3%, 4% and dPtotal net revenues in 20!
2008 and 2007, respectively.




WWE Studios (represents 2%, 5% and 3% of our net reenues in 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively)

Established in 2002, WWE Studios creates ardified mix of filmed entertainment including theeal releases, direct-tbVD films,
television movies, series, animation, reality atiteoprojects currently in development.

WWE Studios has released four feature fil8&se No Evi] The Marine, The Condemnednd12 RoundsWWE Studios has also relea
two direct-to-DVD films,Behind Enemy Lines: Columb&nd The Marine 2. 12 Roundsvas distributed by Fox and was released in M
2009.The Marine 2starring WWE Superstar Ted DiBiase, was producecbimjunction with 20th Century Fox Home Entertaiminand wa
released in December 2009.

In January 2010, WWE Studios announced thailliself-distribute and market its upcoming films beginnwigh the release of the dra
Legendary(working title) starring Patricia Clarkson, Dannyo@er and WWE Superstar John Cena. WWE Studiosalsascompleted shooti
the feature filmKnuckleheadstarring Mark Feuerstein (Royal Pains), Melora Htar@he Office), Paul "Big Show" Wight (WWE), Ders
Farina (Law and Order) and Wendy Malick (Just SiMej}. The film is tentatively scheduled for rele@sé¢he Fall of 2010.

WWE Studios remains committed to providingbglbaudiences familfriendly filmed entertainment which leverages thell Wrestling
Entertainment brand. Upcoming films will featurellenown actors and actresses in lead roles suppbt8fWE Superstars. WWE is sla
to produce and release nine films through 2012.0dpieg projects will feature a wide range of genireduding familyfriendly comedie:
dramas and thrillers. International distributiorllwe handled by WWE's existing television and \adeartners worldwide.

WWE Studios net revenues were $7.7 million, $24iltion and $16.0 million, representing 2%, 5% &% of total net revenues in 20
2008 and 2007, respectively.

International

Revenues generated outside of North America wepeoaimately $127.1 million for 2009, $135.2 milidor 2008 and $119.3 million f
2007. Revenues generated from international sowrcesunted for approximately 27% of total revengeserated in 2009, 26% in 2008
25% in 2007. Revenues generated in the United Kingdur largest international market, were apprataty $36.5 million, $47.3 million ai
$45.0 million for 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively

Creative Development and Production

Headed by our Chairman and Chief Executive Offidéncent K. McMahon, our creative team developsnpelling and comple
characters and weaves them into dynamic storytimetscombine physical and emotional elements. 8tey are usually played out in the
and unfold on our weekly television shows, and ¢nétte in our monthly pay-per-view events.

Our success is due primarily to the continuingysapty of our Superstars and Divas. We currentlyér 140 Superstars and Divas ul
exclusive contracts, ranging from muwar guaranteed contracts with established Supgrstalevelopmental contracts with our Supersta
training. Our Superstars and Divas are highly gdiand motivated independent contractors, whoseengation is tied to the revenue that
help generate. We own the rights to substantidllgfaour characters and exclusively license tights we do not own through agreements
our Superstars and Divas. We continually seekeatifly, recruit and develop additional talent farr dusiness.

Competition

While we believe that we have a loyal fan base,ahtertainment industry is highly competitive authject to fluctuations in populari
which are not easy to predict. For our live, tedéi, pay-periew and movie audiences, we face competition fpoofessional and colle
sports as well as from other forms of live, filmadd televised entertainment and other leisure iieBv We compete with entertainm
companies, professional and college sports leagmels other makers of branded apparel and merchaffidis¢he sale of our brand
merchandise. As we continue to expand into thelhigbmpetitive digital media market we face incehgompetition from websites offeri
paid and free web-based and wireless content. Mampanies with whom we compete have greater fimhnesources than we do.
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Trademarks and Copyrights

Intellectual property is material to all aspector operations, and we expend substantial costediort in an attempt to maintain &
protect our intellectual property and to maintaimpliance vis-a-vis other partiesitellectual property. We have a large portfolioregistere
and unregistered trademarks and service marks winlddand maintain a large catalog of copyrightedkspincluding copyrights in o
television programming, music, photographs, bookagazines and apparel art. A principal focus of effwrts is to protect the intellecti
property relating to our originally created chaeastportrayed by our performers, which encompassages, likenesses, names and ¢
identifying indicia of these characters. We alsoncavlarge number of internet website domain nanmesaperate a network of develog
content-based sites, which facilitate and contgliatthe exploitation of our intellectual propenygridwide.

We vigorously seek to enforce our intellectualgady rights by, among other things, searchingitiernet to ascertain unauthorized
of our intellectual property, seizing goods thaatéee unauthorized use of our intellectual propentyl seeking restraining orders an
damages in court against individuals or entiti€singing our intellectual property rights. Our faié to curtail piracy, infringement or ot
unauthorized use of our intellectual property rigétfectively, or our infringement of otheiigtellectual property rights, could adversely at
our operating results.

Financial Information about Segments

See note 18 to Notes to Consolidated Statesneshiich is included elsewhere in this FormKLOfor financial information about each
our segments.

Employees

As of February 2010 we had approximately 585 egg#s. This headcount excludes our Superstars, rehim@ependent contractors. (
in-house production staff is supplemented with comtpzsonnel for our television production. We bedighat our relationships with ¢
employees are generally satisfactory. None of ouysleyees are represented by a union.

Regulation
Live Events

In various states in the United States and someadio jurisdictions, athletic commissions and otapplicable regulatory agencies req
us to obtain licenses for promoters, medical cleega and/or other permits or licenses for perfosraad/or permits for events in order for u
promote and conduct our live events. In the evieat tve fail to comply with the regulations of afarlar jurisdiction, we may be prohibit
from promoting and conducting our live events iattjurisdiction. The inability to present our liegents over an extended period of time «
a number of jurisdictions could lead to a declime¢hie various revenue streams generated from weielients, which could adversely affect
operating results.

Television Programming

The production of television programming by indegent producers is not directly regulated by thaefal or state governments, but
marketplace for television programming in the Udittates and internationally is substantially aéfddoy government regulations applici
to, as well as social and political influences wmtevision stations, television networks and cabid satellite television systems and chan
We voluntarily designate the suitability of eachoof television shows using standard industry gatimnd all of our programming carries a
rating. Changes in governmental policy and privsgtetor perceptions could further restrict our paogrcontent and adversely affect our le
of viewership and operating results.

Available Information

Copies of our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, @ery Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on F8#§ and any amendments to th
reports, are available free of charge on our weladihttp://corporate.wwe.coas soon as reasonably practicable after such sepratfiled witl
the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). @ports are also available free of charge on tBE’'S website, http://www.sec.gav
None of the information on any of our websites astpf this Annual Report on Form -K. Our Corporate Governance Guidelines, Coc
Business Conduct and charters of our Audit Commigted Compensation Committee are also availabteuomebsite. A copy of any of the
documents will be mailed to any stockholder witholhiarge upon request to us at World Wrestling Eaitement, Inc., 1241 East Main Stri
Stamford, CT 06902, Attn: Investor Relations Deesntt.




Item 1A. Risk Factors

There are inherent risks and uncertainties assatigith our business that could adversely affectaperating performance and finan
condition. Set forth below are descriptions of thasks and uncertainties that we currently belteviee material, but the risks and uncertai
described below are not the only risks and uncaita that could affect our business. See the dion under Cautionary Statement |
Purposes of the ‘Safe Harbor’ Provisions of thev@®d Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995” itein 7, Managemert’Discussion ar
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggiems, in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Our failure to maintain or renew key agreemersg could adversely affect our ability to distributetelevision and pay-perview
programming which could adversely affect our operang results.

Our television programming is distributed bpddcast and cable networks, and our pay-per-vimgramming is distributed by pay-per-
view providers. Because our revenues are generalieectly and indirectly, from the distribution ajur televised and pay-perew
programming, any failure to maintain or renew agements with these distributors or the failure fof tistributors to continue to prov
services to us could adversely affect our operatésylts. We regularly engage in negotiations irgjato substantial agreements covering
distribution of our cable, broadcast and/or paygew television by carriers located in the Unitehtes and abroad.

Our failure to continue to develop creative and etertaining programs and events would likely lead toa decline in the popularity o
our brand of entertainment and could adversely affet our operating results.

The creation, marketing and distribution of tiue and televised entertainment, including oay{perview events, is at the core of |
business and is critical to our ability to genenseenues across our media platforms and produtgteuOur failure to continue to cre
popular live events and televised programming wdildely lead to a decline in our television ratingsd attendance at our live events, w
would adversely affect our operating results.

Our failure to retain or continue to recruit key performers could lead to a decline in the appeal ajur storylines and the popularity
of our brand of entertainment, which could adverse} affect our operating results.

Our success depends, in large part, upon outtyabdlirecruit, train and retain athletic performenso have the physical presence, ac
ability and charisma to portray characters in e events and televised programming. We cannairas®u that we will be able to continue
identify, train and retain these performers in fineire. Additionally, we cannot assure you thatwit be able to retain our current perform
during the terms of their contracts or when theimtcacts expire. Our failure to attract and reteg performers, or a serious or untimely in
to, or the death of, or unexpected or premature @wsretirement for any reason of any of our keyfqueners, could lead to a decline in
appeal of our storylines and the popularity of brand of entertainment, which could adversely aféer operating results.

The loss of the creative services of Vincent K. Mdahon could adversely affect our ability to createpopular characters anc
creative storylines, which could adversely affectuwr operating results.

In addition to serving as Chairman of our BoardDafectors and Chief Executive Officer, Mr. McMahteads the creative team t
develops the storylines and the characters fotedavised programming and live events. Mr. McMai®also an important member of our
of performers. The loss of Mr. McMahon due to urestpd retirement, disability or death or other yested termination for any reason cc
have a material adverse effect on our ability teate popular characters and creative storylinegshmtould adversely affect our operal
results.

A continued decline in general economic conditionand disruption of financial markets may, among otler things, reduce thi
discretionary income of consumers or further erodeadvertising markets, which could adversely affectar business.

Our operations are affected by general econaunditions, which affect consumedisposable income. The demand for entertainmer
leisure activities tends to be highly sensitivéhie level of consumerslisposable income. Declines in general economiditions could reduc
the level of discretionary income that our fans antential fans have to spend on our live and iséel/entertainment and consumer prod
which could adversely affect our revenues. Volgtiand disruption of financial markets could linoitir clients’, licensees’ and distributors’
ability to obtain adequate financing to maintairegtions and result in a decrease in sales vollnatecbuld have a negative impact on
business, financial condition and results of openat Our television partners derive revenues from oogmmming by the sale of advertisi
and we sell advertising directly on our website andur magazines. As widely reported, the adviedisnarket has been impacted by the v
economic environment. Continued softness in theketarould adversely affect our revenues or thenfirel viability of our distributors.
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Our accounts receivable represent a significant ption of our current assets and relate principally to a limited number of
distributors, increasing our exposure to bad debtsind potentially impacting our results of operations

A substantial portion of our accounts recelgadre from distributors of our pay-peiew, television, home video and magazine prod
Adverse changes in general economic conditionscantinued contraction in global credit markets dopitecipitate liquidity problems ama
our key distributors. This could increase our expedo losses from bad debts and have a matenarse effect on our business, finan
condition and results of operations.

A decline in the popularity of our brand of sportsentertainment, including as a result of changes ithe social and political climate
could adversely affect our business.

Our operations are affected by consumer tasteseatgttainment trends, which are unpredictable sufgject to change and may
affected by changes in the social and politicahalie. Our programming is created to evoke a past@aesponse from our fans. Changes il
fans’ tastes or a material change in the perceptionsinbaosiness partners, including our distributord Btensees, whether as a result of
social and political climate or otherwise, could/@xbely affect our operating results.

Changes in the regulatory atmosphere and relat private sector initiatives could adversely affécour business.

While the production of television programming ibgependent producers is not directly regulatedhigyfederal or state government
the United States, the marketplace for televisimgmmming in the United States is affected sigaifitly by government regulations applice
to, as well as social and political influences wmtevision stations, television networks and cabid satellite television systems and chan
We voluntarily designate the suitability of eachoof television shows using standard industry gajrand all of our programming currently
a PG rating. Domestic and foreign governmental mndtesector initiatives relating to the content of megliagramming are announced fr
time to time. Changes in these governmental palieied privatesector perceptions could further restrict our paogrcontent and advers
affect our levels of viewership and operating resul

The markets in which we operate are highly compdtive, rapidly changing and increasingly fragmentedand we may not be able t
compete effectively, especially against competitonsith greater financial resources or marketplace pesence, which could adverse
affect our operating results.

For our live, television and pay-péew audiences, we face competition from professi@md college sports, as well as from other fi
of live and televised entertainment and other keisactivities in a rapidly changing and increagmighgmented marketplace. The manne
which audio/video content is distributed and vievigdonstantly changing, and while we attempt ®iritiute our content across all platfor
our failure to continue to do so effectively coaldversely affect our operating results. For the shlour consumer products, we compete
entertainment companies, professional and collpgesleagues and other makers of branded appateharchandise. Many of the compa
with whom we compete have greater financial resggitban we do.

Our failure to compete effectively could resultansignificant loss of viewers, venues, distribntichannels or performers and fe
entertainment and advertising dollars spent orfaun of sports entertainment, any of which couldexdely affect our operating results.

We face uncertainties associated with intern&inal markets.

Our production of live events overseas subjectdouthe risks involved in foreign travel and logabulations, including regulatic
requiring us to obtain visas for our performers.abidition, these live events and the licensing wf ®levision and consumer product:
international markets expose us to some degreaiwércy risk. All international operations are ®dbjto political instability inherent
varying degrees in those markets. These risks cadversely affect our operating results and impairability to pursue our business stral
as it relates to international markets.




We may be prohibited from promoting and conduting our live events if we do not comply with appkable regulations.

In the United States and some foreign jurisdictjosthletic commissions and other applicable regnfaagencies require us to obt
licenses for promoters, medical clearances andtar@ermits or licenses for performers and/or psrifior events in order for us to prom
and conduct our live events. In the event that aikté comply with the regulations of a particujarisdiction, we may be prohibited frc
promoting and conducting our live events in thatsgliction. The inability to present our live everdver an extended period of time or
number of jurisdictions could lead to a declinghie various revenue streams generated from ouelreats, which could adversely affect
operating results.

Because we depend upon our intellectual proptgr rights, our inability to protect those rights or our infringement of others’
intellectual property rights could adversely affectour business.

Our inability to protect our large portfolio ofatemarks, service marks, copyrighted material dratacters, trade names and ¢
intellectual property rights from piracy, countetifeg or other unauthorized use could negativeligctfour business. Intellectual propert
material to all aspects of our operations, and xperd substantial cost and effort in an attemph&intain and protect our intellectual prop:
and to maintain compliance vis-a-vis other partietllectual property. We have a large portfolioregistered and unregistered trademark:
service marks worldwide and maintain a large cgtadd copyrighted works, including copyrights to dielevision programming, mus
photographs, books, magazines and apparel artin&ipal focus of our efforts is to protect the ifgetual property relating to our origina
created characters portrayed by our performers;iwbihcompasses images, likenesses, names anddghifiying indicia of these characte
We also own a large number of Internet website domames and operate a network of developed, cohesed sites, which facilitate ¢
contribute to the exploitation of our intellectymbperty worldwide.

We vigorously seek to enforce our intellectualpgany rights by, among other things, searchingltibernet to ascertain unauthorized
of our intellectual property, seizing at our liveeats goods that feature unauthorized use of delléstual property and seeking restrair
orders and/or damages in court against individualsentities infringing our intellectual propertyghits. Our failure to curtail pirac
infringement or other unauthorized use of our Ietglal property rights effectively, or our infriagent of othersintellectual property right
could adversely affect our operating results.

We could incur substantial liabilities if pendng material litigation is resolved unfavorably.

We are currently a party to civil litigation, whicif concluded adversely to our interests, couldesisely affect our operating results. In
ordinary course of business we become subjectriousicomplaints and litigation matters. The outeoaf litigation is inherently difficult t
assess and quantify, and the defense against Riofs ©r actions can be costly. Any adverse judgrsemificantly in excess of our insurai
coverage could materially and adversely affectfmancial condition or results of operations.

We could incur substantial liability in the ewent of accidents or injuries occurring during our physically demanding events.

We hold numerous live events each year. This sdbhezkposes our performers and our employees wdh@wolved in the production
those events to the risk of travel and performaet&ted accidents, the consequences of which mapedully covered by insurance. 1
physical nature of our events exposes our perfartethe risk of serious injury or death. Althoumir performers, as independent contrac
are responsible for maintaining their own healisallility and life insurance, we satfsure medical costs for our performers for injariba
they incur while performing. We also sdatfsure a substantial portion of any other liabitityat we could incur relating to such injuries. hilay
to us resulting from any death or serious injurgtained by one of our performers while performitagthe extent not covered by our insura
could adversely affect our business, financial dion and operating results.

Our live events entail other risks inherent inpublic live events.

We hold numerous live events each year, both diicadlg and internationally. Certain risks are inéwgt in large events of this type
well as the travel to and from them. Although wdidve we take appropriate safety and financial audions in connection with our evel
possible difficulties could occur including air alashd travel accidents, the spread of illness sisch H1N1 flu outbreak, injuries resulting f
building problems or other equipment malfunctioiolence, local labor strikes and other “force magéuype events. These issues could r
in cancelled events and other disruptions to osirtass as well as liability to other parties, afyhich could materially and adversely aff
our financial condition or results in operation.
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We will continue to face certain risks relatig to our feature film business.

We have substantial capitalized film costs. Thesgitalized costs are reflected net of certain petidn incentives granted by varic
governmental authorities; our ability to realizegh credits may be limited by changes in the latjisi governing the incentives and/or
economic environment; the inability to realize thesedits would have the effect of increasing owerall production costs. Additionally, t
accounting for our film business in accordance vg#nerally accepted accounting principles entagsificant judgment used to deve
estimates of expected future revenues from filfhexpected revenue for one or more of our filmssdoet materialize because audie
demand does not meet expectations, our estimatemues may not be sufficient to recoup our investnire the film. If actual revenues
lower than our estimated revenues or if costs ayleen than expected, we may be required to recorign@airment charge and write down
capitalized costs of the film. Under our historistdbution model, we participate in revenue aftar distribution partners recoup their cost
distribution, including print and advertising. Ifiitem performance does not generate sufficient ipgsdo recoup these distribution expenses
would be obligated to reimburse our distributiomtpar for any deficit. Additionally, we have rechrannounced that we will self distribute «
market our films. While we believe that this newdabwill better fit our business needs, allowinggueater control in the ultimate succes
our films, no assurances can be given that webeibuccessful in these new endeavors.

Through his beneficial ownership of a substantiamajority of our Class B common stock, Mr. McMahon @n exercise control ove
our affairs, and his interests may conflict with tke holders of our Class A common stock.

We have Class A common stock and Class B comnumk.sThe holders of Class A common stock genefiadlye rights identical
holders of Class B common stock, except that heldérClass A common stock are entitled to one yme share, and holders of Clas
common stock are entitled to ten votes per shaoddéfs of both classes of common stock generallywote together as a single class ot
matters presented to stockholders for their votepproval, except as otherwise required by appicBlelaware law.

A substantial majority of the issued and outstagdihares of Class B common stock is owned bea#fidiy Vincent K. McMahon. M
McMahon controls approximately 88% of the votingmeo of the issued and outstanding shares of oumoamstock. Through his benefic
ownership of a substantial majority of our Class@nmon stock, Mr. McMahon effectively can exerctsmtrol over our affairs, and |
interest could conflict with the holders of our &aA common stock. In addition, the voting poweMsf McMahon through his ownership
our Class B common stock could discourage othens finitiating potential mergers, takeovers or otbleange of control transactions. A
result, the market price of our Class A commonlistmuld decline.

To the extent the Companys distributions represent a return of capital for tax purposes shareholders could recognize an incresd
capital gain upon a subsequent sale of the ComparsyCommon Stock.

The Company believes that its aggregate dividasigiloutions paid in 2009 were in excess of itsrent earnings and profits for that y
calculated under applicable Internal Revenue COERC() provisions. Under the IRC, distributions @xcess of both the Compasycurrer
earnings and profits and the Company’s accumulaggdings and profits will constitute a return opital and will reduce the stockholder’
adjusted tax basis in its Common Stock. If a stotdér’s adjusted basis in its Common Stock is reducezkto, these excess distributi
would thereafter constitute a capital gain to tteelsholder. Dividends paid by the Company couldirbexcess of current and accumul:
earnings and profits as early as calendar 2010.

Our dividend is significant and is dependent on aumber of factors, including a waiver from membersof the McMahon family and
approval of any new waiver by the Internal Revenuéervice.

Our Board of Directors regularly evaluates @@mmpanys Common Stock dividend policy and determines thiend rate each quart
The level of dividends will continue to be influettby many factors, including, among other thirms, liquidity and historical and project
cash flow, our strategic plan (including alternativses of capital), our financial results and ctiolji contractuabnd legal restrictions on t
payment of dividends, general economic and conmpetitonditions and such other factors as our Boeéfdirectors may consider relevant fr
time to time. In February 2008, the Company incedats quarterly dividend from $.24 to $.36 perrehdt that time, the McMahon family a
their trusts entered into an agreement with the @om to waive the increased portion of the dividéodall shares of Class A and Clas
common stock beneficially held by the family fopariod of three years, subject to early terminatiothe event of Vincent K. McMahos'’
death. Instead, they continue to receive a quarterth dividend of $.24 per share. Any new divideraver is subject to the agreemen
members of the McMahon family and their receipthef approval of the Internal Revenue Service. Nui@sces can be given that any sir
dividend waiver will be in place after the currefitidend waiver expires. While we intend to congno pay quarterly dividends, we car
assure our stockholders that dividends will be fraithe future, or that, if paid, dividends will b¢the same amount or with the same frequ
as in the past. Any reduction in our dividend pagtaeould have a negative effect on our stock price
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We could face a variety of risks if we expanghto new and complementary businesses.

We have entered into new or complementary busésegsthe past and may do so again in the futuisksPof expansion may incluc
among other risks: potential diversion of managethseattention and other resources, including avalalish, from our existing busines
unanticipated liabilities or contingencies; redueagnings due to increased amortization, impairnobatges and other costs; competition 1
other companies with more experience in such basew and possible additional regulatory requirésnand compliance costs. In this reg
the Company has announced that it is in the eaalyes of exploring the formation of a WWE telewsitetwork as an additional vehicle
distribute our programming content.

A substantial number of shares are eligible for da by Mr. McMahon and members of his family or trugs established for thei
benefit, and the sale of those shares could loweunrmstock price.

All of the issued and outstanding shares of CEasommon stock are held by Vincent McMahon and othembers of the McMah:
family and trusts set up for these family memb&ales of substantial amounts of these shareseopdtception that such sales could o«
may lower the prevailing market price of our Classommon stock. If any such sales were to occw,srares would automatically con
into Class A common stock, and the waiver of dimdiein excess of $0.24 per share by the McMahoiilyfamould terminate as to the sha
sold. The Company is not aware that any membeh®fMcMahon family has any plan to sell shares othan Shane McMahon, Vince
McMahon’s son and a former executive officer of the Comparho has indicated an interest in a sale or s#l@dl or a substantial portion
the approximate 1.9 million shares beneficiallydngy him.

Our Class A common stock has a relatively smgdublic “float.”

Historically, as a result of our relatively smalilgic float, our Class A common stock has been legsd than the common stock
companies with broader public ownership, and thditg prices for our Class A common stock have lmere volatile than generally may
the case for more widelyeld common stock. Among other things, trading oélatively small volume of our Class A common &totay hav
a greater impact on the trading price of our CRRg®mmon stock than would be the case if our pultdiat were larger.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Commen

None.

Item 2. Properties

We have executive offices, television and musicording studios, postoduction operations and warehouses at locationsr inea
Stamford, Connecticut. We also have offices in Newk, London, Toronto and Los Angeles, and havéoreg international offices in Sydne
Tokyo, Shanghai, and Singapore. We own the buiklingwhich our executive and administrative officesr television and music record

studios and our production operations are locatésllease space for our sales offices, WWE Studiicepand other facilities.

Our principal properties consist of the follog:

Square Expiration Date
Facility Location Feet Owned/Lease( of Lease
Executive offices Stamford, CT 114,30( Owned —
Production studio Stamford, CT 39,00( Owned —
Studios Stamford, CT 7,00( Leased Various through September 2(
WWE Studios offic Los Angeles, C, 11,00( Leased April 2020
Sales offices Various 17,90( Leased Various through October 2015

All of the facilities listed above are utilized aur Live and Televised Entertainment, Consumed®&ets and Digital Media segments, v
the exception of the WWE Studios office in Los Alege which focuses on our WWE Studios segment.

We have upgraded our television production faciiit produce high definition broadcasting. In ortte@llow for future growth we ha
performed the initial planning for an expansioroaf television production facility. However, managnt has elected to delay the start of
construction project until the economic environmiemproves.
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Item 3. Legal Proceeding

See Note 13 to Notes to Consolidated Finar8talements, which is included elsewhere in thisnFb0-K.
Item 4. Submission of matters to a vote of Secutitylders

None.
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PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrar's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters arsslier Purchases of Equity Securities
Our Class A common stock trades on the Nevk&tock Exchange under the symbol “WWE.”

The following table sets forth the high and the leale prices for the shares of Class A common sdsaleported by the New York St
Exchange and the dividends paid on shares of @lasal Class B common stock for the periods inditate

Fiscal Year 2008

Quarter Ended March 31 June 30 September 3( December 31 Full Year
Class A common stock price per share:
High $ 19.4¢ $ 19.8¢ $ 1712 $ 159¢ $ 19.8¢
Low $ 1338 $ 1497 % 13.9¢ % 8.7¢ $ 8.7¢
Class A dividends paid per share $ 03 $ 03 $ 03¢ $ 03 $ 1.44
Class B dividends paid per share $ 022 % 022 % 022 % 022 % 0.9¢
Fiscal Year 2009
Quarter Ended March 31 June 30 September 3( December 31 Full Year
Class A common stock price per share:
High $ 12.2:  $ 1428 $ 1528  $ 16.5¢ $ 16.5¢
Low $ 89¢ $ 10.3¢ % 11.9: $ 13.0¢ $ 8.9¢
Class A dividends paid per share $ 03 $ 03 $ 03 $ 03¢ $ 1.44
Class B dividends paid per share $ 022 % 022 % 022 % 022 % 0.9¢

There were 9,955 holders of record of Class A comistock and five holders of record of Class B cammstock on February 5, 20
Vincent K. McMahon, Chairman of the Board of Dimrst and Chief Executive Officer, along with his evitinda E. McMahon, contr
approximately 88% of the voting power of the iss@ed outstanding shares of our common stock. Thirdhgir beneficial ownership of
substantial majority of our Class B common stock, &hd Mrs. McMahon can effectively exercise cohntneer our affairs.Sales of substant
amounts of these shares, or the perception that sales could occur, may lower the prevailing miapkee of our Class A common stodk.
any such sales were to occur, the shares wouldratittally convert into Class A common stock, arahaiver of dividends in excess of $C
per share by the McMahon family would terminatedashe shares sold. The Company is not aware thatrember of the McMahon fam
has any plan to sell shares other than Shane McMaWiocent McMahors son and a former executive officer of the Compamyo ha
indicated an interest in a sale or sales of adl substantial portion of the approximate 1.9 millghares beneficially held by him.

In February 2008, the Company increased its qupntiévidend from $.24 to $.36 per share. At thaid, the McMahon family and th
trusts entered into an agreement with the Compamyaive the increased portion of the dividend fibshares of Class A and Class B comi
stock beneficially held by the family for a periodl three years, subject to early termination in évent of Vincent K. McMahos' deatt
Instead, they continue to receive a quarterly cigdend of $.24 per share. Any new dividend waigesubject to the agreement of membe
the McMahon family and their receipt of the apploefthe Internal Revenue Service. No assurancasbeagiven that any similar divide
waiver will be in place after the current dividendiver expires.

Our Board of Directors regularly evaluates @@mpanys Common Stock dividend policy and determines thigleind rate each quart
The level of dividends will continue to be influettby many factors, including, among other thiras, liquidity and historical and project
cash flow, our strategic plan (including alternativses of capital), our financial results and ctiowli contractual and legal restrictions on
payment of dividends, general economic and conmpetitonditions and such other factors as our Boéfdirectors may consider relevant fr
time to time, including the waiver by the Mcmahamily of a portion of the dividends. While we inteto continue to pay quarterly divider
we cannot assure our stockholders that dividentdw/ipaid in the future, or that, if paid, dividiswill be at the same amount or with the s
frequency as in the past. Any reduction in ourdévid payments could have a negative effect ontoak grice.
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CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN CHART

Set forth below is a line graph comparing, for pleeiod commencing April 30, 2004 and ending Decen®ie 2009, the cumulative total ret
on our Class A common stock compared to the cummelédtal return of the Russell 2000 Index and 384> Movies and Entertainment Ind
a published industry index. The graph assumesthesiment of $100 at the close of trading of AB6il 2004 in our Class A common stock,
Russell 2000 Index and the S&P Movies and Entartaimt Index and the reinvestment of all dividends.
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—#— World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc.
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- = & - - S5&P Movies & Entertainment
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50 . : : : : :
4/04 405 4706 12/06 12107 12/08 12/09
4/04 4/0% 4/0€ 12/0¢ 12/07 12/0¢ 12/0¢
World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc. 100.0( 80.0: 136.6! 134.1: 129.2¢ 106.9¢ 165.1%
Russell 2000 100.0C 104.7: 139.7¢ 145.2: 142.9: 94.65  120.3¢
S&P Movies & Entertainment 100.0( 98.0¢ 101.9¢ 124.0C 112.1¢ 65.21 96.2¢
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table sets forth certain
December 31, 2009.

Plan Category

Equity compensation plans approved by
security holders :

1999 Long Term Incentive Plan
Stock options
Restricted stock units

2007 Omnibus Incentive Plan
Performance stock units

informatiatith respect to securities authorized for issuamuder equity compensation plans a

Number of securities
to be issued upon
exercise of outstandin

options, warrants

Weighted-average

outstanding options

exercise price of

Number of securities remaining

available for future issuance

under equity compensation

plans (excluding securities

Equity compensation plans not approved by

security holders
Total

Item 6. Selected Financial Dat

and rights warrants and rights reflected in column (a))
(@ (b) (©
192,43¢ $ 13.1¢ -
203,68t N/A -
883,21( N/A 3,534,86.
N/A N/A N/A
1,279,33. 3,534,86.

The following table sets forth our selected finahdata for the years ended December 31, 2009ember 31, 2008 and December
2007, the eight month transition period ended Ddimn31, 2006 and each of the two fiscal years énpglriod ended April 30, 2006. 1
selected financial data as of December 31, 2009Dsmuwmber 31, 2008 and for the years ended DeceBih&009, December 31, 2008
December 31, 2007 have been derived from the alddasolidated financial statements included elsge/in this Annual Report. The selec
financial data as of December 31, 2007, Decembg@a6, April 30, 2006 and April 30, 2005 and fbe teight month transition period en
December 31, 2006, fiscal years ended April 306280d April 30, 2005 have been derived from ourtaddconsolidated financial stateme
which are not included in this Annual Report. Ydwasld read the selected financial data in conjamctivith our consolidated financ
statements and related notes and the informatiofok under “Managemergt’Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiond &esults ¢
Operations” contained elsewhere in this Annual Riepo

Financial Highlights:

Net revenue

Operating income

Income from continuing operations
Net income

Earnings per share, basic
Earnings per share, diluted
Dividends paid per Class A share
Cash and short-term investments

Total assets
Total debt
Total stockholders’ equity

For the periods ended December 31,

For the peeindsd April 30,

2009 2008 2007 T 2006 (1) 2006 2005
$ 4752 $ 5268 $ 4857 $ 262¢ $ 4001 $  366.
$ 771 0% 702 0 $ 684 $ 392 % 708 % 50.:
$ 502 $ 454 % 521  $ 31 % 47.C $ 37.¢
$ 50.2 $ 454 % 521  $ 31 $ 47C % 39.1
$ 0.6¢ $ 06z $ 0.7: % 04t % 068 $ 0.57
$ 068 $ 06z $ 0.7z  $ 044  $ 067 $ 0.5¢
$ 144  $ 144  $ 09¢ $ 07z % 0.7z $ 0.3¢
$ 208z $ 1772 $ 2664 $ 2482 $ 280¢ $ 2587

As of December 31, As of April 30,

2009 2008 2007 T 2006 2006 2005
$ 440€ $ 4294 $ 4701 $ 453 $ 4794 0§ 441«
$ 3¢ % 4¢ % 58 $ 6.7 $ 72 % 8.C
$ 337(C $ 360 $ 383< $ 387 $ 39z $ 375F¢

(1) InJune 2006, WWE changed its fiscal year to ancide basis beginning with calendar 2007. Due toctienge to a calendar year ¢
we established an eight month transition periodnfiday 1, 2006 through December 31, 2006. The redudtm this time period a
referred to throughout this report“ 2006 transition peric’, “T 200€”, or the“transition perio”.
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Item 7. Managemer's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditionnal Results of Operations

You should read the following discussion in comjiimn with the audited consolidated financial sta¢@ts and related notes inclu
elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

Background
The following analysis outlines all materiatigities contained within each of our four segnsent

Live and Televised Entertainment

e Revenues consist principally of ticket sales te Imvents, sales of merchandise at these live evewision rights fees, sales
television advertising and sponsorships, and feesiéwing our pay-per-view and video-on-demandgpamming.

Consumer Products

e Revenues consist principally of the direct saleSMWE produced home videos and magazine publishirtrayalties or license fe
related to various WWE themed products such asowj@enes, toys and books.

Digital Media

e Revenues consist principally of advertising salesoor websites, sale of merchandise on our welisiteRigh our WWEShop interr
storefront and sales of various broadband and mabihtent.

WWE Studios

e Revenues consist of receipts from the distributbriilmed entertainment featuring our Superstars.date, we have partnered v
major studios to distribute our productions. We éhaecently announced plans to gsdiftribute our future filmed entertainm
productions beginning in 2010.

We provide updated information on the key e@révof our business including live event attendapeg-perview buys, home vide
shipments, website traffic, and online merchandiaes on a monthly basis on our corporate webgife//lsorporate.wwe.com Suct
information is not incorporated herein by reference
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Results of Operations

Year Ended December 31, 2009 compared to YeBnded December 31, 2008 (dollars in millions)

Summary

Net Revenues 2009 2008
Live and Televised Entertainment $ 335.( $ 331.t
Consumer Products 99.7 135.7
Digital Media 32.¢ 34.¢
WWE Studios 7.7 24.F
Total $ 475.2 $ 526.¢
Cost of Revenues 2009 2008
Live and Televised Entertainment $ 191.¢ $ 221.2
Consumer Products 41.F 52.1
Digital Media 18.t 22.¢€
WWE Studios 3.9 15.€
Total $ 255.¢ $ 311.¢
Profit contribution margin 46% 41%
Operating Income 2009 2008
Live and Televised Entertainment $ 124.5 $ 92.4
Consumer Products 52.7 76.5
Digital Media 5.8 6.2
WWE Studios 2.2 7.2
Corporate (108.9) (112.0
Operating income $ 77.1 $ 70.2
Income from operations $ 50.5 $ 45.4

Our Live and Televised Entertainment segment histefrom strong performances of our live eventd higher television rights fees
both domestic and international markets, which mibi@n offset declines in our pay-paew business. Our Consumer Products seg
experienced declines in both our home video areh$img businesses, primarily video games and Diggtal Media revenues declined fr
the prior year, primarily as a result of 9% feweders for our WWEShop online retail store. Revermatated to WWE Studios accounted
$7.7 million, as compared to $24.5 million recordethe prior year, reflecting timing differencesaur films release schedule.

Operating income for the year was also impacted BY.4 million charge for bad debt expense relaietiformer distribution partner €
the benefit of $8.3 million of tax incentives reétat to our production activities. $5.0 million dfiielse incentives were recorded as co
revenues, primarily in our Live and Televised Ettigrment segment, while $3.3 million were recorde&elling, General & Administrati
Expenses.

Revenues derived from international sourcpsagented 27% and 26% of total net revenues in 26682008, respectively.
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Live and Televised Entertainment

The following chart provides performance résahd key drivers for our Live and Televised Etiaiement segment:

Revenues- Live and Televised Entertainment 2009 2008
Live events (dollars in millions) $ 108.¢ $ 105.7
Number of North American events 26¢& 24z
Average North American attendance 6,50(C 6,40(C
Average North American ticket price (dollars) $ 37.6¢ $ 40.9¢
Number of international events 74 77
Average international attendance 8,50( 8,50(
Average international ticket price (dollars) $ 66.0¢ $ 78.9¢
Venue merchandise (dollars in millions) $ 19.€ $ 18.t
Domestic per capita spending (dollars) $ 9.5¢ $ 10.3¢
Pay-per-view (dollars in millions) $ 80.C $ 91.4
Number of pay-per-view events 14 14
Number of buys of pay-per-views 4,490,20! 5,034,40!
Average revenue per buy (dollars) $ 17.2¢ $ 17.7¢
Domestic retail price, excludiyrestleManiadollars) $ 39.9¢ $ 39.9¢
Domestic retail pric&vVrestleManigdollars) $ 549t $ 54.9¢
Television rights fees (dollars in millions)
Domestic $ 72.€ $ 63.t
International $ 39.1 $ 37.2
Television advertising (dollars in millions) $ 7.7 $ 7.4
WWE Classics on Demand (dollars in millions) $ 5.4 $ 6.2
Other (dollars in millions) $ 1.4 $ 1k
Total (dollars in millions) $ 335.( $ 331t
Ratings:
Average weekly household ratings for Raw 3.7 34
Average weekly household ratings for SmackDown 2.C 2.4
Average weekly household ratings for ECW 1.2 1.3
Cost of Revenues-Live and Televised Entertainment 2009 2008
Live events $ 74.€ $ 74.2
Venue merchandise 11.1 11.2
Pay-per-view 32.5 49.¢
Television 65.7 75.¢
Television advertising 0.9 0.8
WWE Classics on Demand 0.8 1.8
Other 6.3 7.5
Total $ 191.¢ $ 221.:
Profit contribution margin 43% 33%

Live events revenue reflects approximately $67ilian for North American events and $41.0 millidor international events in 2009
compared to $64.0 million for North American eveatsl $41.7 million for international events in 200&iring 2009, average attendance a
North American events was approximately 6,500 whilerage attendance at our international eventsappsoximately 8,500. During 20(
North American average attendance was approximétdl0 and average international attendance wamxippately 8,500. Live events prc
contribution margin was 31% in 2009 as compare®Dih in 2008. During 2008, 18 of the internationadmts performed were recorded as buy-
out deals. In 2009 it was determined that thesevEhts in 2008, as well as four events in 2009ulshbave been recorded on a gross |
instead of a net basis. Had these events beerdeston a gross basis, revenues and expenses wauddcehch increased by approximately
million in 2008 and approximately $1.3 million i®@9, with no change to profit. See Note 1 to thesdtidated Financial Statemer
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Venue merchandise revenues in 2009 were positivghacted by a 2% increase in average North Amerattendance, partially offset
a 7% decrease in per capita spending dollars. Vararehandise profit contribution margin was 4492009 as compared to 39% in 2008.

Pay-persiew revenue reflects approximately 4.5 million bup 2009 as compared to 5.0 million buys in 20082009, our premit
annual pay-per-view evenfyrestleMania XXV, generated approximately 1.0 million buys as camgado 1.1 million buys fokVrestleManii
XXIV . Several of our pay-per-view events werdranded in the current year to more accuratelecethe types of matches showcased di
each event. Domestic buys, which generate a higtiee per buy, represented 63% of total buys in928® compared to 66% in 2008. The pay-
per-view profit contribution margin was 59% in 2089 compared to 46% in 2008, reflecting lower pobidn related costs in the current year.

Television rights fees reflect rate increases limithomestic and international markets as welhasaddition of our new domestic show
WGN, WWE Superstars, which began airing in ApriD20Television cost of revenues has declined baped cost containment improveme
and production related incentives of $3.2 milliar2D09. The profit contribution margin increaseahir25% to 41% in the current year.

Advertising revenues include sales of advertismgur Canadian television programs and sponsasshipvertising cost of revent
reflects costs associated with an increased ldv@ansorship related activities in the currentryea

WWE Classics On Demand, our subscription basgeb-ondemand service, generated lower revenues basediediae in the numb
of subscribers in the second half of the year.

Consumer Products

The following chart provides performance résahd key drivers for our Consumer Products segmen

Revenues-Consumer Products 2009 2008
Licensing $ 447 $ 60.5
Magazine publishing $ 13.t $ 15.4
Net units sold 4,026,30! 4,702,801
Home video $ 39.Z $ 58.t
Gross DVD units 3,506,85 4,053,71!
Other $ 2.1 $ 1.3
Total $ 99.7 $ 135.7
Cost of Revenues-Consumer Products 2009 2008
Licensing $ 11.C $ 13.€
Magazine publishing $ 11.1 $ 13.2
Home video $ 173 $ 24.2
Other $ 1.7 $ 1.C
Total $ 41.F $ 52.1
Profit contribution margin 58% 62%

Licensing revenues include $8.2 million in the tategory as compared to $12.8 million in the pyigar, reflecting an overall softening
the retail market. Beginning on January 1, 2010ttéldecame our master toy licensee under a rge#i-agreement. Videogame revenue
$19.6 million as compared to $25.3 million in théopyear. In December 2009, we entered into a eighit year contract, effective Januar
2010, with THQ granting them exclusive worldwidghis to develop and publish video games based prantent. In connection with tt
agreement, we received a payment of $13.2 millioD&cember 2009 which is included as momrent deferred income on the balance ¢
and will be recognized ratably over the term of thgreement.

Licensing revenues related to books were appraximn&6.8 million lower in the current year, as firéor year included the recognition
an advance relating to a muwear contract with a book publisher. Licensing aafstevenue consists primarily of talent royalteasd ager
commissions paid to our licensing agents. The fgenprofit contribution margin was 75% in 2009casnpared to 78% in 2008.
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Magazine publishing revenues declined in tineent year due to lower newsstand sletbugh rates, in addition to publishing two fe
special issues of WWE magazine in 2009 as comptaréle prior year. Magazine publishing profit cémiition margin was 18% in 2009
compared to 14% in 2008 as the profit margin wasrably impacted by a decline in publication costs.

Home video revenue reflects the sale of approxiya.5 million gross DVD units in 2009 as compated!.1 million gross units in 20(
Included in the successful titles released in 20@8 WrestleMania XXV, which shipped approximately 234,000 gross ufitee home vide
profit contribution margin was 55% in 2009 as conegao 59% in 2008, reflecting increased distribuittosts.

Digital Media

The following chart provides performance resultsl &ey drivers for our Digital Media segment (dadlan millions, except avera
revenues per order):

Revenues- Digital Media 2009 2008
WWE.com $ 16.¢ $ 16.2
WWEShop 16.C 18.F
Total $ 32.¢ $ 34.¢
Average WWEShop revenues per order (dollars) $ 51.8:¢ $ 54.7i
Cost of Revenues-Digital Media 2009 2008
WWE.com $ 6.9 $ 8.8
WWEShop 11.€ 14.1
Total $ 18.t $ 22.€
Profit contribution margin 44% 34%

WWE.com revenue in 2009 reflects additionahdigated content sales to outside websites. Wésed advertising accounted
approximately $10.8 million in revenues as compdacefi10.6 million in 2008. The WWE.com profit cabirtion margin was 59% in 2009
compared to 46% in 2008, reflecting lower costoeisted with the production of web content and likeaefit of $1.1 million of productic
incentives.

WWEShop revenue in 2009 reflects approximately, 300 customer orders, a decrease of 9% from tloe peiar. The average custor
spend, $51.83 per order, decreased 5% from the year. The WWEShop profit contribution margin v&8%6 in 2009 as compared to 249
the 2008, partially reflecting a decrease in matennd fulfillment costs.

WWE Studios

The following chart provides performance réstor our WWE Studios segment (dollars in milligns

Revenues- WWE Studios 2009 2008
WWE Studios $ 7.7 $ 24°%
Total $ 77 $ 24t
Cost of Revenues-WWE Studios 2009 2008
WWE Studios $ 39 $ 15.€
Total $ 39 $ 15k
Profit contribution margin 49% 36%

WWE participates in revenues associated with dor firojects when the distribution and advertisiogts incurred by our distributors hi
been recouped and the results have been reportesl uring 2009, revenues from our WWE Studiosrsag were $7.7 million, primari
relating to our three previously released featilnesf The Marine, See No EvihndThe Condemned:he revenues recorded for our films va
based upon the release schedule of the films. BRID9 we released our fourth feature filtd, Roundsas well as two Direct-t®VD films,
Behind Enemy Line: ColombiaandThe Marine 2 12 Roundgenerated approximately $12.2 million in gross dsiebox office receipts. W
believe the gross receipts generated.ByRoundswill be sufficient to recoup the distribution exes incurred by our distribution partner
our investment in the film. We will begin recogmigi revenue fod2 Roundsn 2010.12 Roundsomprises $19.7 million of our “In release”
feature film assetBehind Enemy Lines: Colomband The Marine 2comprise $2.1 million and $2.3 million, respectiuedf “In release”
feature film assets. Our feature film assets arerded net of certain production incentives. Du20§9 we received $4.3 million in product
incentives relating to our film production.
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Expenses

The following chart reflects the amounts aftaim significant overhead items (dollars in milig):

Selling, General & Administrative Expenses 2009 2008
Staff related $ 62.1 $ 55.2
Legal, accounting and other professional 14.¢ 16.€
Stock compensation 7.4 8.C
Advertising and promotion 4.1 11.€
Bad debt 8.6 2.3
All other 30.€ 37.4
Total SG&A $ 127.¢ $ 131:c
SG&A as a percentage of net revenues 27% 25%

Staff related expenses in the current yedudechigher amounts of accrued incentive compemsdtased on the Compasyperformanc:
Advertising and promotion costs in 2008 included5$fillion associated with our McMahan'Million Dollar Mania™ brand awarent
campaign. WWE was reimbursed $2.0 million, neteof, for the prize money associated with this evsnthe Chairman and Chief Execut
Officer of WWE, Vincent K. McMahon. Bad debt experia the current year reflects an approximatelyl $iillion charge to bad debt expe
related to a former distribution partner. Additibtpathe current year includes a benefit of $3.3liom relating to television productit
incentives.

2009 2008
Depreciation and amortization $ 144 $ 131

The increase in depreciation and amortization egpeeflects a full year of depreciation charge20A9 associated with the equiprn
purchased for our move to high definition broadcasin 2008.

2009 2008
Investment income $ 31 $ 5¢
The decline in investment income reflects Ipiméerest rates on investment balances.
2009 2008
Interest expense $ 03 $ 04
2009 2008
Other expense, net $ 04 $ 64

Other expense, net includes the revaluation ofamis held in certain licensees of $1.1 million &80 million for 2009 and 20C
respectively, and realized foreign exchange gaialslesses.

Provision for Income Taxes 2009 2008
Provision $ 29.1 $ 23.¢
Effective tax rate 37% 35%

The prior year rate reflects higher tax-exemfgrest income and tax benefits related to a gaam previously unrecognized tax positions.
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Year Ended December 31, 2008 compared to YeBnded December 31, 2007 (dollars in millions)

Summary

Net Revenues 2008 2007
Live and Televised Entertainment $ 331.t $ 316.¢
Consumer Products 135.7 118.1
Digital Media 34.¢ 34.¢
WWE Studios 24.t 16.C
Total $ 526.t $  485.7
Cost of Revenues 2008 2007
Live and Televised Entertainment $ 221.2 $ 202.¢
Consumer Products 52.1 45.¢€
Digital Media 22.¢ 21.c
WWE Studios 15.€ 29.1
Total $ 311.¢ $ 298.¢
Profit contribution margin 41% 38%
Operating Income 2008 2007
Live and Televised Entertainment $ 92.4 $ 100.:
Consumer Products 76.5 68.¢€
Digital Media 6.2 6.3
WWE Studios 7.2 (14.¢)
Corporate (112.0 (91.9
Total operating income $ 70.2 $ 68.4
Income from operations $ 45.4 $ 52.1

Our Live and Televised Entertainment segment hitenefrom strong performances both at internati@mal North American live events
well as higher television rights fees in both dotiteand international markets. Our licensing basaegnue accounted for approximately ¢
of our Consumer Products segment in 2008 as compardé0% in 2007, primarily due to amounts earnggart of a license with our bc
publisher. Digital Media revenues were essentialtighanged from the prior year. Revenues related/V8E Studios accounted for $2
million, reflecting a full year of revenue, compdneith the $16.0 million recorded in the prior yedrich revenues began in the third quart
2007.

Revenues derived from international sourcpsagented 26% and 25% of total net revenues in 2068007, respectively.
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Live and Televised Entertainment

The following chart provides performance résahd key drivers for our Live and Televised Etiaiement segment:

Revenues- Live and Televised Entertainment 2008 2007
Live events (dollars in millions) $ 105.7 $ 99.2
Number of North American events 242 23%
Average North American attendance 6,40(C 6,60(
Average North American ticket price (dollars) $ 40.9¢ $ 40.47
Number of international events 77 75
Average international attendance 8,50( 7,70C
Average international ticket price (dollars) $ 78.9¢ $ 79.6(
Venue merchandise (dollars in millions) $ 18.t $ 19.1
Domestic per capita spending (dollars) $ 10.3¢ $ 10.7¢
Pay-per-view (dollars in millions) $ 91.4 $ 94.2
Number of pay-per-view events 14 15
Number of buys of pay-per-views 5,034,40! 5,200,80!
Average revenue per buy (dollars) $ 17.7¢ $ 17.43
Domestic retail price, excludiyrestleManiadollars) $ 39.9¢ $ 39.9¢
Domestic retail pric&vVrestleManigdollars) $ 549t $ 49.9¢
Television rights fees (dollars in millions)
Domestic $ 63.5 $ 59.€
International $ 37.2 $ 32.¢
Television advertising (dollars in millions) $ 7.4 $ 5.¢
WWE 24/7 Classics on Demand (dollars in millions) $ 6.3 $ 4.¢
Other (dollars in millions) $ 15 $ 0.8
Total (dollars in millions) $ 331.k $ 316.¢
Ratings:
Average weekly household ratings for Raw 34 g
Average weekly household ratings for SmackDown 2.4 2.7
Average weekly household ratings for ECW 1.3 1.t
Cost of Revenues-Live and Televised Entertainment 2008 2007
Live events $ 74.2 $ 71.2
Venue merchandise 11.2 11.4
Pay-per-view 49.¢ 43.€
Television 75.¢ 66.5
Television advertising 0.8 0.8
WWE 24/7 Classics on Demand 1.8 21
Other 7.5 7.1
Total $ 221.2 $ 202.¢
Profit contribution margin 33% 36%

Live events revenue reflected approximately $6dilion for North American events and $41.7 millifor international events in 20
as compared to $61.9 million for North American geand $37.4 million for international events B0Z. During 2008, average attendanc
our North American events was approximately 6,400levaverage attendance at our international eveats approximately 8,500. Duri
2007, North American average attendance was appeigly 6,600 and average international attendaree approximately 7,700. Duri
2008, 18 of the international events performed wecerded as bugut deals. In 2009 it was determined that thesevedits in 2008, as well
six events in 2007, should have been recordedgnoss basis instead of a net basis. Had thesesleah recorded on a gross basis, revt
and expenses would have each increased by apprkyn®6.3 million in 2008 and approximately $2.7llmn in 2007, with no change
profit. Live events profit contribution margin was 30% 08 as compared to 28% in 20!
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Venue merchandise revenues in 2008 were impagtelebslight decline in North American average radnce and per capita spent
dollars. Venue merchandise profit contribution niasgas 39% in 2008 as compared to 40% in 2007.

Pay-periew revenue reflected approximately 5.0 millionybun 2008 as compared to 5.2 million buys in 20672008, our premi
annual pay-per-view eventWrestleMania XXI\, generated approximately 1.1 million buys as camgao 1.2 million buys fowrestleManii
XXIII . Domestic buys, which carry a higher price per,lvapresented 66% of total buys in 2008 and 206@.Jay-periew profit contributiol
margin was 46% in 2008 as compared to 54% in 2@lEcting additional spending in guest talent gaymotion and consumer advertisin
support ofWrestleMania XXIV

The increase in domestic and international telemisights fees reflected our new agreement withNityvork TV as well as contractt
increases in several territories. The increaselevision cost of revenues reflects higher producind staging costs incurred related tc
broadcasting in high definition.

Advertising revenues included sales of advertismgur Canadian television programs and sponsgssidvertising cost of revent
reflects costs associated with the increased spsimiparelated activities in 2008.

WWE 24/7 Classics On Demand, our subscripbaesed video-omemand service, generated higher revenues baséldeoexpande
number of subscribers from 2007.

Consumer Products

The following chart provides performance résahd key drivers for our Consumer Products segmen

Revenues- Consumer Products 2008 2007
Licensing $ 60.E $ 47.1
Magazine publishing $ 15.4 $ 16.5
Net units sold 4,702,80! 4,858,40!
Home video $ 58.t $ 53.7
Gross DVD units 4,053,71! 4,034,16
Other $ 1.3 $ 0.8
Total $ 135.% $ 118.1
Cost of Revenues-Consumer Products 2008 2007
Licensing $ 13.€ $ 11.¢
Magazine publishing $ 13.5 $ 11.4
Home video $ 24.2 $ 21.€
Other $ 1.C $ 0.7
Total $ 52.1 $ 45.¢
Profit contribution margin 62% 61%

Licensing revenues in 2008 reflect approximatel?.8 million in the toy category, $25.3 million the videogame category and 9
million related to apparel and novelties. In 2008venues reflected approximately $14.3 million fve toy category, $18.3 million in t
videogame category and $9.4 million related to egipand novelties. 2008 reflects revenues fromvideogame title “SmackDown vs. R:
2008” released in seven platforms versus four platfororstfie prior release in this series. Licensing news related to books wi
approximately $6.4 million higher in 2008, primgrdlue to amounts earned as part of a license withook publisher. Licensing revenu
dependent upon the release schedule of productisaffected by the timing of when licensees repesults to us. Licensing cost of reve
consists primarily of talent royalties and agentaogssions paid to our licensing agents. The licapgirofit contribution margin was 78%
2008 as compared to 75% in 2007.

Magazine publishing revenues declined in 2008 to lower newsstand sell-through rates as vdighed twentysix issues as compal
to twenty-one issues in 2007. In April 2008, we &regublishing a new magazine title/WE Kidsa bi-monthly publication for @4 year ol
WWE fans, which generated approximately $0.9 millio revenue. The magazine publishing profit cdmftion margin was 14% in 2008
compared to 31% in 2007 as the profit margin waeeskly impacted by the lower sell-through rates laigher publication costs.
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Home video revenue reflects the sale of approxéipat.1 million gross DVD units in 2008 as compated.0 million gross units
2007. Included in the successful titles release@0f8 was WrestleMania XXIV, which shipped approximately 326,000 gross urits
increase in home video costs is due to higheribigion fees and advertising. The home video prgittribution margin was 59% in 200€
compared to 60% in 2007, reflecting the aforememtibcost increases.

Digital Media

The following chart provides performance resultsl &ey drivers for our Digital Media segment (dddlan millions, except avera
revenues per order):

Revenues- Digital Media 2008 2007
WWE.com $ 16.2 $ 16.2
WWEShop $ 18.5 $ 18.€
Total $ 34.¢ $ 34.¢
Average revenues per order (dollars) $ 54.7i $ 54.9¢
Cost of Revenues-Digital Media 2008 2007
WWE.com $ 8.8 $ 7.€
WWEShop $ 14.1 $ 13.7
Total $ 22.¢ $ 21.2
Profit contribution margin 34% 3%

WWE.com revenue in 2008 reflects additionabvaelvertising and wireless content. Widised advertising accounted for approximi
$10.6 million in revenues as compared to $10.4ionilln 2007. The WWE.com profit contribution margimas 46% in 2008 as compared £
in 2007, reflecting higher costs associated witl wentent.

WWEShop revenue in 2008 reflects approximately, 329 customer orders, essentially flat to the py&ar. The average customer sp
$54.77 per order, was essentially flat to the pyiar as well. The WWEShop profit contribution nmiargias 24% in 2008 as compared to :
in the 2007, partially reflecting an increase inenial costs.

WWE Studios

The following chart provides performance résahd key drivers for our WWE Studios segmentléslin millions):

Revenues- WWE Studios 2008 2007
WWE Studios $ 24Ff $ 16.C
Total $ 24F $ 16.C
Cost of Revenues-WWE Studios 2008 2007
WWE Studios $ 15.€ $ 291
Total $ 15€ $ 291
Profit contribution margin 36% (82%)

WWE patrticipates in revenues associated with oo projects when the distribution and advertisgwsts incurred by our distribut
have been recouped and the results have beeneédportis. During 2008, revenues from our WWE Stidiegment was $24.5 million, relat
to our three feature filmsThe Marine, See No Eviand The Condemneduring 2008 we expensed $15.6 million of featuha fproductior
assets, including a $1.9 million film asset impamnhcharge related to the performanceSek No Eviand approximately $0.9 million
development costs for abandoned projects.

During 2007 we recorded $16.0 million in revennd axpensed approximately $29.1 million of featfiilre production assets, includi
a $15.7 million film asset impairment charge refate the performance of our theatrical releasehe Condemnedind approximately $0
million of development costs for abandoned projects
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Expense:

The following chart reflects the amounts aftaim significant overhead items (dollars in milig):

Selling, General & Administrative Expenses 2008 2007
Staff related $ 55.2 $ 50.2
Legal, accounting and other professional 16.€ 14.C
Stock compensation 8.C 7.8
Advertising and promotion 11.€ 5.4
Bad debt 2.5 0.1
All other 37.4 31.t
Total SG&A $ 131: $ 109.
SG&A as a percentage of net revenues 25% 23%

Staff related expenses increased in 2008 duerintpdahe continued expansion of our Digital Med@antent staff and advertising s¢
force and additional personnel related to our im@&onal expansion. The increase in legal, accogrgind other professional fees refle
additional litigation based expense due to cas@igct Stock compensation expense includes amditimaof restricted stock unit a
performance stock unit grants issued to employ@ekvertising and promotion costs in 2008 include5$&illion associated with o
McMahon’s Million Dollar Mania brand awareness campaign. WWas reimbursed $2.0 million, net of tax, for fhize money associat
with this event by the Chairman of WWE, Vincent McMahon. Additional advertising and promotion cosfsapproximately $1.2 millic
were also incurred in support of our new internadimffices. Bad debt expense in the current yeflects an increase for specifically identil
accounts due to difficulties encountered in outemtion efforts.

2008 2007
Depreciation and amortization $ 131 $ 93

The increase in depreciation and amortization egpeeflects the initial depreciation charges dased with the assets purchased for
implementation of high definition broadcasting.

2008 2007
Investment income $ 59 $ 91
The decline in investment income reflects Ioweestment balances.
2008 2007
Interest expense $ 04 $ O0€
2008 2007
Other expense, net $ 64 $ 0EF

Other expense, net includes a markatarket adjustment for the revaluation of warrargklhin licensees and realized losses on fo
currency transactions.

Provision for Income Taxes 2008 2007
Provision $ 23¢ $ 24:
Effective tax rate 35% 32%

The prior year rate reflects higher tax-exemggrest income and tax benefits related to a gham previously unrecognized tax positions.
Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash flows provided by operating activities wetd &4 million, $36.2 million and $98.2 million fthe years ended December 31, 2
December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, resplyct®ash flows provided by operating activities wain part, due to the timing of ¢
productions and the related amortization of feafimes. Cash flows used for feature film productieere $9.9 million, $25.5 million and $:
million for 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. Hstimated cash to be used in 2010 for film produnctiosts is expected to be $20.0 to $
million, depending on the number and type of filnojpcts selected. Working capital, consisting ofreat assets less current liabilities,
$222.7 million, $221.7 million and $276.1 milliohBecember 31, 2009, December 31, 2008 and DeceBih@007, respectively.
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We receive production incentiv@edits or refunds through various governmentalgmams designed to promote film and televi
production within the United States and internatigarisdictions. We anticipate receiving approxietg $10.0 to $15.0 million in producti
credits within the next twelve months. The timingdarealizable amount of credits is impacted by production schedule and limitatic
associated with monetization of the credits.

Our accounts receivable represent a significantiqgro of our current assets and relate principédlya limited number of customers
distributors. Changes in the financial conditionoperations of our distributors or customers mayltein increased delayed payments or non-
payments which would adversely impact our cashdlénem operating activities and/or our results péi@tions. In this regard, during 2009
recorded a charge for $7.4 million to reserve foe@eivable related to a former distribution partne

Net cash flows used in investing activities weged$million in 2009, while cash flows provided bwesting activities were $21.7 milli
in 2008 and $13.0 million in 2007. As of Februarn2610, we had approximately $22.4 million of invesnt securities invested in auction
securities (“ARS”) and $64.0 million of investmesgcurities invested in municipal and corporate sond

Our investment policy is designed to preservetabpind minimize interest rate, credit and marksk.rin February 2008, we startec
experience difficulty in selling our ARS due to riple failures of the auction mechanism that presgidiquidity to these investments. All of «
ARS are collateralized by student loan portfolmshstantially all of which are guaranteed by thététhStates Government. We anticipate
the securities for which the auctions have failéitl @ntinue to accrue interest and pay interesémwtue; todate, none of the ARS in which
are invested have failed to make an interest paymbkan due. Our ARS will continue to be auctionedrg 35 days until the auctions succt
the issuer redeems the securities or they matbee dtated maturities of the securities are grethten 20 years). As we maintain a str
liquidity position, our intent is not to sell theaurity and we believe that it is not more likeiaih not that we will be required to sell until af
the aforementioned remedies occurs.

As of December 31, 2009, we have recorded a cuivelladjustment of approximately $2.0 million toduee the fair value of o
investment in ARS, which has been reflected as paraccumulated other comprehensive income in oansGlidated Statement
Stockholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income. Weat believe that the fair market value adjustnigmdther-thartemporary at this tirr
due to the high underlying creditworthiness of tbsuer (including the backing of the loans includedhe collateral package by the Un
States Government), our intent not to sell the sgcand our determination that it is not more likéhan not that we will be required to sell
security before recovery of its anticipated amedizost basis. The fair value of the ARS was es@ichthrough discounted cash flow moc
which consider, among other things, the timing xyfexted future successful auctions, collateraliratf underlying security investments .
the risk of default by the issuer. We will contintee assess the carrying value of our ARS on eapbrtiag date, based on the facts
circumstances surrounding our liquidity needs aenketbpments in the ARS markets.

Capital expenditures for fixed asset projects vagproximately $5.4 million, $26.3 million and $28nillion in 2009, 2008 and 20(
respectively. Capital expenditures in 2008 and 2@@@cted approximately $9.5 million and $10.Xkpectively, related to our transition to h
definition broadcasting. Also in 2008 we acquiredaacel of land adjacent to our television studiodpproximately $3.0 million and incur
approximately $3.9 million in costs related to i@nning of our media center expansion. Howevenagament has elected to delay the st:
any construction for this expansion until the ecoimenvironment improves. Capital expenditures @@ excluding costs incurred for
media center project, are expected to be betweéhrlion and $11.0 million for building improvemts and equipment.

Cash flows used in financing activities for 20@®08 and 2007, were $79.8 million $74.1 million &8&lL.6 million, respectively.
February 2008, the Board of Directors authorizedtharease in the quarterly cash dividend to $0&6share on all Class A common share!
held by the McMahon family. The quarterly dividend all Class B common shares, held by members eefMhMahon family and the
respective trusts, will remain at $0.24 per shar¢hay have waived quarterly cash dividends in exod $0.24 per share for a period of tl
years. In 2009, we paid four quarterly cash divitenf $0.36 on all Class A common shares, and $0n24ll Class B common shares, fo
aggregate amount of $82.3 million. In 2008, we daigr quarterly cash dividends of $0.36 on all Glascommon shares, and $0.24 ot
Class B common shares, for an aggregate amourlo#i $nillion. In 2007, we paid four quarterly cadiridends, at $0.24 per share or
Class A and Class B common shares, for an aggregadeint of $68.7 million. Assuming the continuatiminthese respective cash quart
dividend rates of $0.36 per share and $0.24 paedad the same stock ownership, the estimated rtnodwlividends that would be paid
2010 is approximately $82.9 million.

We believe that cash generated from operagodsfrom existing cash and sheetm investments will be sufficient to meet ourtcased
over the next twelve months for working capitapital expenditures, feature film production and plagment of dividends.
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Contractual Obligations

In addition to longerm debt, we have entered into various other actgrunder which we are required to make guararpgegthent:
including:

e Various operating leases for office space and enei.

e Employment contract with Vincent K. McMahon, whiims through October 2011, with annual renewaleetifeer if not terminated |
us or Mr. McMahon, as well as a talent contrachviitr. McMahon that is coterminous with his employrneontract. Mr. McMahc
waives all of his compensation under theses agreenexcept for a salary of $850,000 per year.

e Other employment contracts, which are generallyofe-to three-year terms.

e Service contracts with certain of our independemti@ctors, including our talent, which are gerlgrar one-to four-year terms.

Our aggregate minimum payment obligations undesehcontracts as of December 31, 2009, assumingdhtnued waiver (
compensation by Mr. McMahon (except for the anrsaddry of $850,000, noted above), were as follows:

Payments due by period

($ in millions)

After

2010 2011t0201: 2013 to 201 2014 Total
Long-term debt (including interest thereon) $ 132 % 27 % 04 $ - 3% 4.4
Operating leases 2.1 2.2 1.6 2.3 8.2
Talent, employment agreements and other commitments 152 9.9 5.4 3.7 34.5
Total commitments $ 18¢ $ 14¢  $ 74 $ 6C $ 471

Seasonality

Our operating results are not materially affdcby seasonal factors; however, our premier e¥rgstleMania, occurs late in our fir
qguarter or early in our second quarter. In addjtimvenues from our licensing and direct sale afsamer products, including our catal
magazines and internet sites, may vary from petdoperiod depending on the volume and extent @nking agreements and marketing
promotion programs entered into during any paréicperiod of time, as well as the commercial susofthe media exposure of our charac
and brand. The timing of these events as well azdmtinued introduction of new product offeringsl aevenue generating outlets can and
cause fluctuation in quarterly revenues and eaming
Inflation

During 2009, 2008 and 2007, inflation hasmexd a material effect on our business.
Application of Critical Accounting Policies

Accounting Policie!

We believe the following are the critical accougtipolicies used in the preparation of our finahstatements, as well as the signific
judgments and estimates affecting the applicatichese policies
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e Revenue Recognition
Pay-per-view programming

Revenues from our pay-peew programming are recorded when the event edaand are based upon our initial estimate of thebe
of buys achieved. This initial estimate is basegmiiminary buy information received from our ppgrview distributors. Final reconciliatic
of the pay-periew buys occurs within one year and any subsegaeépistments to the buys are recognized in theogerew information
received. As of December 31, 2009, our payypew accounts receivable was $13.7 million. If mitial estimate is incorrect, it can resul
significant adjustments to revenues in subsequegtsy

Licensing:

Licensing revenues are recognized upon receippirts from the individual licensees that detad toyalties generated by product s:
If we receive licensing advances or fupnt fees, such payments are deferred and recedrig income as earned over the term of the cal
In connection with our new agreement with THQ weeieed a payment of $13.2 million in December 2@@& we have recorded as non-
current deferred income and we will recognize #nsunt ratably over the term of this agreement.

Home video:

Revenues from the sales of home video titles ezerded at the later of the date of delivery by distributor to wholesalers, or the ¢
that these products are made widely availabledt® By retailers, net of an allowance for estimat#drns. The allowance for estimated ret
is based on historical information and current Btdutrends. As of December 31, 2009, our homeovigg¢urns allowance was $5.5 million
we do not accurately predict returns, we may hawdfust revenues in future periods.

Magazine publishing:

Publishing newsstand revenues are recorded whppezhby our distributor to wholesalers/retailerst of an allowance for estima
returns. We estimate the allowance for newsstatame based upon our review of historical retutesand the expected performance o
current titles in relation to prior issue returttesa As of December 31, 2009, our newsstand re@itowance was $4.8 million. If we do |
accurately predict returns, we may have to adgstmues in future periods.

Feature films:

We capitalize costs of production and acquisitimejuding production overhead, as feature filmduation assets. We participate
revenues generated under the distribution of tnesfthrough all media after the print and advantisand distribution costs incurred by
distributors have been recouped and the results haen reported to us. The costs for an indivifilral are amortized and participation ¢
residual costs are accrued in the proportion thatcurrent period’s revenues bear to managemestimates of the ultimate revenue f
exploitation, exhibition or sale of such film ove@iperiod not to exceed ten years from the dateitélirelease. Management regularly revi
and revises, when necessary, its ultimate revendeast estimates, which may result in a changledmate of amortization of film costs anc
write-down of all or a portion of the unamortized codtshe film to its estimated fair value. No assuragan be given that unfavorable chal
to revenue and cost estimates will not occur, whidghy result in significant writdowns affecting our results of operations and faial
condition. In 2008 and 2007 we recorded an impaitnebarge of $1.9 million and $15.7 million relatedSee No Evil and The Condemned
respectively. As of December 31, 2009, we have@pprately $37.1 million in capitalized film produeh costs.

We have performed estimates of our ultimate regdoueach of our released film projects, as welihee capitalized costs for various 1
projects in development, and believe no additievrite-down is required at this time.

e Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Our receivables represent a significant portioowf current assets. We are required to estimatedhectibility of our receivables and
establish allowances for the amount of receivatilas we estimate to be uncollectible. We base tldegvances on our historical collect
experience, the length of time our receivablesarstanding and the financial condition of indivadiicustomers. Changes in the finar
condition of significant customers, either adveosepositive, could impact the amount and timingaof/ additional allowances that may
required. During 2009 we recorded an allowancedfrbtful accounts of $7.4 million related to a femdistribution partner. As of Decem
31, 2009, our allowance for doubtful accounts whk.$ million.
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e Income Taxes

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are recognifoedthe expected future tax consequences of evdatshave been reflected in
Consolidated Financial Statements. Deferred tdiliiies and assets are determined based on tferetices between the book and tax bas
particular assets and liabilities and operating loarryforwards, using tax rates in effect for ylears in which the differences are expecte
reverse. A valuation allowance is provided to dffdeferred tax assets if, based upon the availebidence, including consideration of
planning strategies, it is more-likely-thawt that some or all of the deferred tax assets ot be realized. As of December 31, 2009,
deferred tax assets were $24.8 million, less aat@mo allowance of $1.2 million. Our deferred taabilities were $18.1 million and ¢
unrecognized tax benefits totalled $9.2 million.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2009, the Financial Accounting Standarasmaf8 (FASB) issued authoritative guidance whictalglighed the FASB Standa
Accounting Codification ("Codification”) as the goe of authoritative GAAP recognized by the FASB® applied to nongovernmer
entities, and rules and interpretive releases ®fSEC as authoritative GAAP for SEC registrante Todification supersedes all the exis
non-SEC accounting and reporting standards upon iecéfe date and, subsequently, the FASB will netiésnew standards in the forn
Statements, FASB Staff Positions or Emerging IsJiaek Force Abstracts. The guidance is not intenidexthange or alter existing GAAP. 1
guidance became effective for WWE in the third ¢eraof 2009. The guidance did not have an impacthenCompany's financial positic
results of operations or cash flows. All referenteeprevious numbering of FASB Statements, FASBf $asitions or Emerging Issues T.
Force Abstracts have been removed from the finbataéements and accompanying footnotes.

In August 2009, the FASB issued guidance on thasmement of liabilities at fair value. The guidamrovides clarification that
circumstances in which a quoted market price imetive market for an identical liability is not akedle, an entity is required to measure
value using a valuation technique that uses theéegluprice of an identical liability when tradedas asset or, if unavailable, quoted price:
similar liabilities or similar assets when tradedassets. If none of this information is availalale,entity should use a valuation techniqt
accordance with existing fair valuation principlé#¢e adopted the guidance in the quarter ended Dese81, 2009. The adoption did not h
an impact on the Company's financial position, ltesaf operations or cash flows.

In May 2009, the FASB issued authoritative guidafar subsequent events. The guidance provideoutattive accounting literatu
related to evaluating subsequent events that wagqusly addressed only in the auditing literatuFee guidance is similar to the curr
guidance with some exceptions that are not intededsult in significant change to current praetithe guidance defines subsequent e
and also requires the disclosure of the date thraugich an entity has evaluated subsequent evewtshee basis for that date. The Comg
adopted the disclosure provisions of the guidarscefalune 30, 2009. The Company evaluated its DieeeBil, 2009 financial statements
subsequent events through February 23, 2010, tieetit statements were issued. The Company iswareeaof any subsequent events w
would require recognition or disclosure in the finel statements.

In April 2009, the FASB issued authoritative guida for interim disclosures about fair value ofaficial instruments, which ament
existing guidance. The guidance requires disclasabsut fair value of financial instruments in imefinancial statements as well as in an
financial statements. The Company adopted the gimms of the guidance as of June 30, 2009. Thetmhodid not have an impact on
Company's financial position, results of operationsash flows.

In April 2009, the FASB issued authoritative guida related to determining the fair value of aretss liability when the volume a
level of activity for the asset or liability hagsificantly decreased, which is effective for imterand annual periods ending after June 15, :
The new rules also require additional disclosuegarding the categories of fair value instrumeats,well as the inputs and valua
techniques utilized to determine fair value and engnges to the inputs and valuation techniqueisgltine period. The Company adopted
provisions of the guidance as of June 30, 2009.a0wption did not have an impact on the Compaityan€ial position, results of operation:
cash flows.

In April 2009, the FASB issued authoritative guida related to the recognition and presentatiasttedr than temporary impairments.
guidance amends existing other than temporary imyzit guidance for debt securities to make theayjdd more operational and to impr
presentation and disclosure of other than tempdrmapairments on debt and equity securities in tharfcial statements. It requires disclos
about fair value of financial instruments in interfinancial statements as well as in annual firansiatements. The Company adoptec
provisions of the guidance as of June 30, 2009.a0wption did not have an impact on the Compairygtial position, results of operation:
cash flows.
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Cautionary Statement for Purposes of the “Safe Harb) Provisions of the Private Securities LitigatioReform Act of 1995

The Private Securities Litigation Reform A¢t1®95 provides a “safe harbor” for certain statataghat are forwartboking and are n
based on historical facts. When used in this Repbet words “may,” “will,” “could,” “anticipate,” plan,” “continue,” “project,” “intend;
“estimate”, “believe”, “expect” and similar exprésss are intended to identify forward-looking stagmts, although not all forwalddeking
statements contain such words. These statemeats telour future plans, objectives, expectationsiatentions and are not historical facts
accordingly involve known and unknown risks andenteinties and other factors that may cause theabosults or the performance by u
be materially different from future results or perhance expressed or implied by such forwlaaking statements. The following factc
among others, could cause actual results to diffaterially from those contained in forwal@bking statements made in this Report, in |
releases and in oral statements made by our amétubdfficers: (i) our failure to maintain or ren&ey agreements could adversely affect
ability to distribute our television and pay-pgew programming; (ii) our failure to continue tewklop creative and entertaining programs
events would likely lead to a decline in the popityaof our brand of entertainment; (iii) our faiki to retain or continue to recruit |
performers could lead to a decline in the appeauwfstorylines and the popularity of our branceonfertainment; (iv) the loss of the crea
services of Vincent K. McMahon could adversely efffeur ability to create popular characters anaitive storylines; (v) continued decline
general economic conditions and disruption in foiahmarkets could adversely affect our businegs;dur accounts receivable represe
significant portion of our current assets and eelatincipally to a limited number of distributoiscreasing our exposure to bad debts
potentially impacting our results of operationsij)(a decline in the popularity of our brand of sigoentertainment, including as a resul
changes in the social and political climate, coadiversely affect our business; (viii) changes m tbgulatory atmosphere and related pr
sector initiatives could adversely affect our bes# (ix) the markets in which we operate are Rigldmpetitive, rapidly changing a
increasingly fragmented, and we may not be ablectmpete effectively, especially against competitwith greater financial resources
marketplace presence; (x) we face uncertaintiescaged with international markets; (xi) we maygsehibited from promoting and conduct
our live events if we do not comply with applicabégulations; (xii) because we depend upon outlétieial property rights, our inability
protect those rights, or our infringement of othergellectual property rights, could adversely affecir business; (xiii) we could inc
substantial liabilities if pending litigation isselved unfavorably; (xiv) we could incur substahliability in the event of accidents or injur
occurring during our physically demanding evenks)) ur live events schedule exposes us to riskergnt in large public events as wel
travel to and from such events; (xvi) we continadatce risks inherent in our feature film businggsiji) through his beneficial ownership o
substantial majority of our Class B common stock, @ntrolling stockholder, Vincent K. McMahon, cexercise control over our affairs,
his interests may conflict with the holders of dtlass A common stock; (xviii) we could face a varief risks if we expand into new
complementary businesses; (xix) a substantial nurobshares are eligible for sale by Mr. McMahord anembers of his family or tru:
established for their benefit, and the sale, orpiaeeption of possible sales, of those sharesidouler our stock price; and (xx) our Clas
common stock has a relatively small public “flodti.addition, our dividend is significant and is @éapent on a number of factors, includ
among other things, our liquidity and historicatlgorojected cash flow, strategic plan (includingadative uses of capital), our financial res
and condition, contractual and legal restrictiomstloe payment of dividends, general economic amdpatitive conditions and such ot
factors as our Board of Directors may considerviaaié including a waiver by the McMahon family opartion of the dividends as descril
elsewhere in this Report. The forwdabking statements speak only as of the date sf R@port and undue reliance should not be plac
these statements.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure®aut Market Risk

In the normal course of business, we are expasdaréign currency exchange rate, interest rateeanidty price risks that could impi
our results of operations. Our foreign currencyhexwge rate risk is minimized by maintaining minimat assets and liabilities in curren
other than our functional currency.

Interest Rate Ris

We are exposed to interest rate risk related talebt and investment portfolio. Our debt considtthe mortgage related to our corpo
headquarters, which has an annual interest rate686. The fair value of this debt is not signifidgrdifferent from its carrying amount.

Our investment portfolio consists primarily of nicipal bonds and student loan auction rate seesritiith a strong emphasis placec
preservation of capital. In an effort to minimizer@xposure to interest rate risk, our investmentfplio’s dollar weighted duration, exclud
our long term auction rate securities, is less tra@ year. Due to the nature of our investmentscamdtrategy to minimize market and inte
rate risk, we believe that our portfolio would h& materially impacted by adverse fluctuationsieriest rates.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Di

The information required by this item is satlfi in the Consolidated Financial Statements filétth this report.
Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accourts&aon Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None
Item 9A. Controls and Procedure

We have performed an evaluation under the supenvand with the participation of our managememtjuding our Chairman and Ch
Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officef,the effectiveness of our disclosure controls pratedures, as defined under the Secu
Exchange Act of 1934. Based on that evaluation,Ghairman and Chief Executive Officer, and our €Ri@ancial Officer concluded that
of the end of the period covered by this FormKlsur disclosure controls and procedures werectffe and designed to ensure tha
material information required to be disclosed by @ompany in reports that it files or submits uniher Exchange Act is recorded, proces
summarized and reported within the time period<i§ipd by the SEC and that such information is acclated and communicated to
management, as appropriate to allow timely decssiegarding required disclosure.

There were no changes in the Company’s intexortrol over financial reporting identified in moeection with managemestevaluatio
that occurred during the fourth quarter of our disgear ended December 31, 2009 that has matea#ficted, or is reasonably likely
materially affect, our internal control over finaacreporting.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Oveliriancial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingraaititaining adequate internal control over finahogporting, as such term is defii
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 188{f). Under the supervision and with the partitipa of our management, including our Chain
and Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Finandificer, we conducted an evaluation of the effemtiess of our internal control o
financial reporting as of December 31, 2009 basedhe guidelines established limternal Control — Integrated Framewoiksued by th
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tremd@ommission (COSO). Our internal control ovegafinial reporting includes polici
and procedures that provide reasonable assuragaedieg the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial statements
external reporting purposes in accordance with geBerally accepted accounting principles.

Based on the results of our evaluation, our mamagée concluded that our internal control over fitiahreporting was effective as
December 31, 2009. We review the results of managémassessment with our Audit Committee.

The effectiveness of our internal control ovegfigial reporting as of December 31, 2009 has bediteal by Deloitte & Touche LLP, .
independent registered public accounting firm, tated in their report which is included in this Amh Report on Form 18. Such repo
expresses an unqualified opinion on the effectigsrd the Company'’s internal control over financégorting as of December 31, 2009.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc.
Stamford, CT

We have audited the internal control over financggdorting of World Wrestling Entertainment, Inmdasubsidiaries (the "Company") as
December 31, 2009, based on criteria establishebhtérnal Control — Integrated Frameworiksued by the Committee of Sponso
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Camgamanagement is responsible for maintainingcéffe internal control over financ
reporting and for its assessment of the effectiserad internal control over financial reportingclided in the accompanyiriganagement
Report on Internal Control over Financial ReportinOur responsibility is to express an opinion on @a&mpany's internal control o\
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadslof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti8a&@nited States). Those stand:
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting w
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal corar@r financial reporting, assessing the
that a material weakness exists, testing and etimaduthe design and operating effectiveness ofiatecontrol based on the assessed risk
performing such other procedures as we consideredssary in the circumstances. We believe thaaudit provides a reasonable basis fol
opinion.

A company's internal control over financial repogtis a process designed by, or under the supenvi, the company's principal execu
and principal financial officers, or persons penmfiorg similar functions, and effected by the compsipoard of directors, management,
other personnel to provide reasonable assuraneedieg the reliability of financial reporting anbet preparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generally @edeaccounting principles. A company's internaitod over financial reporting includ
those policies and procedures that (1) pertaihearaintenance of records that, in reasonablel dataurately and fairly reflect the transacti
and dispositions of the assets of the companypr@ide reasonable assurance that transactiongeeseded as necessary to permit prepar
of financial statements in accordance with gengi@dlcepted accounting principles, and that recaiptsexpenditures of the company are t
made only in accordance with authorizations of ngan@ent and directors of the company; and (3) peviehsonable assurance regar
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized asijjon, use, or disposition of the company's as¢leqit could have a material effect on
financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal tcohover financial reporting, including the posdétg of collusion or improper managemi
override of controls, material misstatements duertor or fraud may not be prevented or detected ¢imely basis. Also, projections of ¢
evaluation of the effectiveness of the internaltoanover financial reporting to future periods aebject to the risk that the controls r
become inadequate because of changes in conditivttgt the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all mialerespects, effective internal control over fical reporting as of December 31, 2(
based on the criteria establishedlmternal Control — Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiminthe
Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Blo@united States),the consolida
financial statements and financial statement sdeeds of and for the year ended December 31, 20@8eoCompany and our report de
February 24, 2010 expressed an unqualified opiaiothose financial statements and financial stat¢sehedule.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
Stamford, Connecticut
February 24, 2010
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Item 9B. Other Information
None.
PART Il

The information required by Part Ill (Items-18) is incorporated herein by reference to ourrdiéfie proxy statement for our 20
Annual Meeting of Stockholders, except for the egaompensation plan information required by ItePp Which is set forth above in ltem 5.

PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedul
(a) The following documents are filed as a parthds report:

1. Consolidated Financial Statements and Sche8eleindex to Consolidated Financial Statementsage p-1 of this Report.

2. Exhibits:
Exhibit
No. Description of Exhibit
3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatiocofporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to our Begtion Statement ¢

Form &1 (No. 33:-84327)).

3.1A Amendment to Amended and Restated Certificate afrjporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibli(d) to our Registratic
Statement on Form-8, filed July 15, 2002

3.2 Amended and Restated By-laws (incorporated by eefsr to Exhibit 3.4 to our Registration Statementorm S-1 (No. 333-
84327)).

3.2A Amendment to Amended and Restatec-Laws (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2@)otr Registration Statement
Form &8, filed July 15, 2002

10.1 World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc. 2007 Omnibusdntive Plan, effective July 20, 2007 (incorpordtgdeference to Exhit
10.2 to the Current Report on Fori-K filed July 26, 2007).’

10.2 Form of Agreement for Performance Stock Units ® @ompan’s employees and officers under the Com|'s 2007 Omnibt
Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to ExHibi3 to the Current Report on Fori-K filed July 26, 2007).’

10.3 Form of Agreement for Restricted Stock Units to @@mpan’s employees and officers under the Com|'s 2007 Omnibt
Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to ExHibi4 to the Current Report on Fori-K filed July 26, 2007).

10.4 Employment Agreement with Vincent K. McMahon, datedtober 14, 1999 (incorporated by reference toilixfh0.2 to ou
Registration Statement on Forr-1 (No. 33:-84327)).*

10.4A Amendment, dated as of May 1, 2002, to EmploymegteAment with Vincent K. McMahon (incorporated laference t
Exhibit 10.2A to our Annual Report on Form-K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2002

10.4B  Amendment, dated June 23, 2006, to Employment Ageaé with Vincent K. McMahon (incorporated by reface to Exhib
10.2B to our Annual Report on Form-K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2006
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10.5 Booking Contract with Vincent K. McMahon, dated Redry 15, 2000 (incorporated by reference to ExHibi3 to our Annui
Report on Form 1-K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2000

10.5A Amendment, dated July 3, 2001, to Booking Contveithh Vincent K. McMahon (incorporated by referertoeExhibit 10.3A t
our Annual Report on Form -K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2001

10.6 World Wrestling Entertainment Employee Stock PusehBlan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 16.6ur Annual Report ¢
Form 1(-K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2002

10.7 Registration Rights Agreement, dated August 30,1208 and between Invemed Catalyst Fund, L.P. arcdldMNrestling
Entertainment, Inc. (incorporated by referencexbikit 10.10 to our Annual Report on Form KOfor the fiscal year ended Ag
30, 2002)

10.8 Revised offer letter between the Company and D@wldsmith (incorporated by reference to Exhibitl9h our Current Repc
on Form K, dated December 1, 2008

10.9 Offer letter between the Company and George A.iBsufincorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2lotw Current Report ¢
Form &K, dated March 14, 2008)

10.10  Offer letter, dated March 4, 2004, between the Camypand John Laurinaitis (incorporated by referetacExhibit 10.17 to ot
Annual Report on Form -K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2005

10.11 Employment Agreement, dated June 15, 2009, betweeiCompany and Michael Pavone (incorporated bgreete to Exhib
10.19 to the Quarterly Report on Forn-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 20!

10.12 Separation Agreement and Release between the CgngmahMichael Sileck (incorporated by referenceeidnibit 10.1 to th
Current Report on Forir-K, dated December 31, 2008

10.13 Open End Mortgage Deed, Assignment of Rents andriBgdgreement between TSI Realty Company and GM2d&@nmercie
Mortgage Corp. (assigned to Citicorp Real Estate,)] dated as of December 12, 1997 (incorporatedeference to Exhik
10.11 to our Registration Statement on Fo-1 (No. 33:-84327)).

10.14 Promissory Note issued by TSI Realty Company to GM2ommercial Mortgage Corp. (assigned to CiticogalREstate, Inc.
dated as of December 12, 1997 (incorporated byarée to Exhibit 10.12 to our Registration StatenmmenForm S-1 (No. 333-
84327)).

10.15 Environmental Indemnity Agreement among TSI Re&@ltympany, Titan Sports Inc. and GMAC Commercial Mage Cory
(assigned to Citicorp Real Estate, Inc.), datecdbfa®ecember 12, 1997 (incorporated by referencé&xhibit 10.13 to ot
Registration Statement on Forr-1 (No. 33:-84327)).

10.16  Assignment of Leases and Rents between TSI Realtgp@ny and GMAC Commercial Mortgage Corp. (assigiwe@iticory
Real Estate, Inc.), dated as of December 12, 1B@brporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to oegRtration Statement
Form &1 (No. 33:-84327)).

10.17 Agreement between WWW/orld Wide Fund for Nature and Titan Sports, Inatedi January 20, 1994 (incorporated by refel
to Exhibit 10.16 to our Registration Statement onnf &-1 (No. 33:-84327)).

21.1 List of Subsidiaries (filed herewith
23.1 Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP (filed herewit

31.1 Certification by Vincent K. McMahon pursuant to 8en 302 of Sarban-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith
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* Indicates management contract or compensatory @arrangement.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or)1&f{(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regig has duly caused this report t
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, therely authorized.

W ORLD W RESTLING E NTERTAINMENT, | NC.
(Registrant)

Dated: February 23, 2010 By: IS/ VINCENT K. MCMAHON
Vincent K. McMahon

Chairman of the Board of Directors and

Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securitieh&xge Act of 1934, this report has been signedwbblpthe following persons on bel
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#ites indicated.

Signature Title or Capacity Date
Chairman of the Board of Directors and

/s/ VINCENT K. MCMAHON Chief Executive Officer

Vincent K. McMahon (principal executive officer) February 23, 201

/s/ DONNA N. GOLDSMITH
Donna N. Goldsmith Chief Operating Officer and Director February 23, 201

/s/ LOWELL P. WEICKER Jr.
Lowell P. Weicker Jr. Director February 23, 201

/s/ DAVID KENIN
David Kenin Director February 23, 201

/s/ JOSEPH H. PERKINS
Joseph H. Perkins Director February 23, 201

/sl MICHAEL B. SOLOMON
Michael B. Solomon Director February 23, 201

/sl FRANK A. RIDDICK II
Frank A. Riddick Il Director February 23, 201

/s/ JEFFREY R. SPEED
Jeffrey R. Speed Director February 23, 201

/s/ KEVIN DUNN
Kevin Dunn Director February 23, 201

/s/ BASIL V. DEVITO Jr.

Basil V. DeVito Jr Director February 23, 201
/sl GEORGE A. BARRIOS Chief Financial Officer
George A. Barrios (principal financial and accounting offic February 23, 201
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc.
Stamford, CT

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of World Wrestling Entertainment, Ina anbsidiaries (the "Company") as
December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the related colasetl statements of income, stockholders' equity acamprehensive income, and c
flows for each of the three years in the periodeshBecember 31, 2009. Our audits also includeditiaecial statement schedule listed in
Index at Item 15. These financial statements andnfiial statement schedule are the responsibifitthe Company's management.
responsibility is to express an opinion on theriicial statements and financial statement schedadedon our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting Oversighaflo(United States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audit to obta@asonable assurance about whether the finast@ééments are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An @
also includes assessing the accounting princied and significant estimates made by managenemtekhas evaluating the overall finan
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statetaepresent fairly, in all material respects, tiwarfcial position of World Wrestlir
Entertainment, Inc. and subsidiaries as of DecerBlhe2009 and 2008, and the results of their omeratand their cash flows for each of
three years in the period ended December 31, 20@@nformity with accounting principles generadigcepted in the United States of Amel
Also, in our opinion, such financial statement sitle, when considered in relation to the basic clidated financial statements taken i
whole, presents fairly, in all material respedtg, information set forth therein.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Boédnited States), the Compar
internal control over financial reporting as of Betber 31, 2009, based on the criteria establighédtérnal Control4ntegrated Framewo
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatimhthe Treadway Commission and our report datelorley 24, 2010 expressed
unqualified opinion on the Company's internal cohtrver financial reporting.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
Stamford, Connecticut
February 24, 2010

F-2




WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS
(dollars and shares in thousands, except per sladag

For the years ended

December 31, December 31, December 31,
2009 2008 2007

Cost of revenues 255,84" 311,78 298,76¢

Depreciation and amortization 14,42: 13,08: 9,31¢

Investment income, net 3,051 5,87 9,11(

(63)
[N

Other expense, net 41F 6,381

N
&
w
®

Provision for income taxes 29,127 23,94(

Earnings per share - Basic:

Earnings per share - Diluted:

Basic 73,76¢ 72,88¢ 71,61¢

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financate8tents.

F-3




WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

As of:

December 31, December 31,
2009 2008
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 149,78 $ 119,65
Short-term investments 58,44( 57,68¢
Accounts receivable, net 62,73: 60,13
Inventory, net 2,18: 4,95¢
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 21,72 37,59¢
Total current assets 294,85¢ 280,02¢
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET 84,37¢ 92,36)
FEATURE FILM PRODUCTION ASSETS 37,05 31,65’
INVESTMENT SECURITIES 22,37( 22,29¢
INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET 27€ 1,18¢
OTHER ASSETS 1,68 1,87¢
TOTAL ASSETS $ 440,62: $ 429,41
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS'’ EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Current portion of long-term debt $ 1,08 $ 1,00z
Accounts payable 21,28: 18,33«
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 35,16¢ 27,12:
Deferred income 14,60: 11,87¢
Total current liabilities 72,13( 58,33
LONG-TERM DEBT 2,79( 3,87:
NON-CURRENT INCOME TAX LIABILITIES 17,15: 7,23
NON-CURRENT DEFERRED INCOME 11,52¢ —
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Class A common stock: ($.01 par value; 180,000 shares authorized,;

25,746,603 and 25,080,454 shares issudo@standing as of December 31,

2009 and 2008, respectively) 257 252
Class B common stock: ($.01 par value; 60@0®shares authorized:;

47,713,563 shares issued as of Decemh&0BP and 2008) 477 477
Additional paid-in capital 326,00¢ 317,10!
Accumulated other comprehensive income 2,37 1,171
Retained earnings 7,902 40,96¢

Total stockholders’ equity 337,02: 359,97-
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY $ 440,62: $ 429,41

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financitegtents.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(dollars and shares in thousands)

Accumulated

Additional Other
Common Stock Paid —in Comprehensive Retained
Shares Amount Capital (Loss) Income Earnings Total

Balance, December 31, 2006 70,99¢ 71C 286,98 66€ 97,35( 385,71:
Comprehensive income:

Net income — — — — 52,131 52,13i

Translation adjustment — — — 963 — 963

Unrealized holding loss, net of tax of

$31 — — — 51 — 51

Reclassification adjustment for losses

realized in net income, net of tax of

$744 — — — 1,21¢ — 1,214
Total comprehensive income 54,36¢
Stock issuances (repurchases), net 31¢ 3 (1,274 — (1,277
Exercise of stock options 472 5 6,16¢ — 6,17(
Excess tax benefits from stock-based

payment arrangements — — 841 — — 841
Dividends paid — — 882 — (69,54¢) (68,664)
Adjustment to adopt uncertain tax

positions — — — — (1,502 (1,507)
Stock compensation costs — — 7,73C — — 7,73C
Balance, December 31, 2007 71,78¢ 71¢€ 301,32¢ 2,892 78,43¢ 383,38(
Comprehensive income:

Net income — — — — 45,41¢ 45,41¢

Translation adjustment — — — (1,207 — (1,207%)

Unrealized holding loss, net of tax of

$404 — — — (660C) — (660C)

Reclassification adjustment for losses

realized in net income, net of tax of

$89 — — — 144 — 144
Total comprehensive income 43,69:
Stock issuances (repurchases), net 551 6 (2,967) — — (2,957%)
Exercise of stock options 514 5 6,26 — — 6,26¢
Excess tax benefits from stock-based

payment arrangements — — 1,081 — — 1,081
Dividends paid — — 1,48¢ — (82,88¢) (81,39))
Stock compensation costs — — 7,95¢ — — 7,95¢
Capital contribution by principal

stockholder — — 1,95C — — 1,95(C
Balance, December 31, 2008 72,85 $ 72¢ $ 317,100 $ 1,171 $ 40,96¢ $ 359,97

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinancatkeStents.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)

(dollars and shares in thousands)

Accumulated

Additional Other
Common Stock Paid —in Comprehensive Retained
Shares Amount Capital (Loss) Income Earnings Total

Balance, December 31, 2008 72,85: $ 72¢ $ 317,10¢ $ 1,171 $ 40,96¢ $ 359,97
Comprehensive income:

Net income — — — — 50,30: 50,30:

Translation adjustment — — — 987 — 987

Unrealized holding gain, net of tax of

$541 — — — 883 — 883

Reclassification adjustment for gains

realized in net income, net of tax of

$407 — — — (664) — (664)
Total comprehensive income 51,50¢
Stock issuances (repurchases), net 371 3 (2,17¢) — — (1,179
Exercise of stock options 18C 2 2,33¢ — — 2,34(
Tax shortfall from stock-based payment
arrangements — — (690 — — (690)
Dividends paid — — 1,101 — (83,370 (82,269
Stock compensation costs — — 7,33(C — — 7,33(C
Balance, December 31, 2009 73,40¢ $ 734 $ 326,000 $ 2,371 $ 7,90 $ 337,02

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financetke8tents.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

For the years ended

December 31,

2009

December 31,

2008

December 31,

2007

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net income $ 50,30: $ 45,41¢ $ 52,137
Adjustments to reconcile net income to nehga®vided by operating
activities:
Amortization of feature film production assets 3,91¢ 15,61¢ 29,06:
Depreciation and amortization 14,42¢ 13,08: 9,31¢
Realized (gains) losses on sales of invessnent (1,022 232 1,95¢
Amortization of investment income 952 657 (493
Stock compensation costs 7,38¢ 7,95¢ 7,777
Unrealized loss on revaluation of warrants 1,05( 3,031 1,17¢
Provision for doubtful accounts 8,55¢ 2,521 47
Provision for inventory obsolescence 1,991 2,67¢ 1,037
Provision (benefit) for deferred income taxes 672 6,60¢ (7,427
Excess tax benefits from stock-based payneahgements (139 (2,087) (841)
Reimbursement of operating expenses by piimsimckholder — 1,95(C —
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (11,159 (6,989 (4,53))
Inventory 78t (2,920 (2,709
Prepaid expenses and other assets 18,86« (7,402) 8,68¢
Feature film production assets (9,942 (25,529 (1,839
Accounts payable 2,94¢ (3,61%) 7,042
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 12,08! (11,26)) (59¢)
Deferred income 14,72¢ (4,719 (1,667)
Net cash provided by operating adasit 116,40° 36,24: 98,16:
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property and equipment and ogseta (5,52%) (26,567) (18,51¢)
Purchases of short-term investments (54,599 (119,49Y) (211,36¢)
Proceeds from sales or maturities of shoritelwvestments 53,68 167,79t 242,88t
Net cash (used in) provided by invegtctivities (6,437) 21,74( 13,00¢
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repayment of long-term debt (1,002) (927) (860)
Issuance of stock, net 951 84z 882
Dividends paid (82,269 (81,397 (68,669
Net proceeds from exercise of stock options 2,34( 6,26¢ 6,17(
Excess tax benefits from stock-based paynreabhgements 13z 1,081 841
Net cash used in financing activities (79,84) (74,139 (61,63))
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT 30,12¢ (16,150 49,53¢
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF PERIOD 119,65¢ 135,80! 86,267
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF PERIOD $ 149,78 $ 119,65! $ 135,80¢
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the period for income taxes,of refunds $ 10,87( $ 16,68: $ 24,29¢
Cash paid during the period for interest $ 341 $ 41€ $ 552

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financategtents.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

1. Basis of Presentation and Business Description

The accompanying consolidated financial statememdside the accounts of World Wrestling Entertaimténc., and our subsidiari
“WWE" refers to World Wrestling Entertainment, Inand its subsidiaries, unless the context otherngsgiires. References to “we,” “us,”
“our” and the “Companytefer to WWE and its subsidiaries. We are an irgsgt media and entertainment company, principalyaged in th
development, production and marketing of televisiomd pay-periew event programming and live events and thenBogg and sale
consumer products featuring our World Wrestlingeftainment brands. Our operations are organizadhdréour principal activities:

Live and Televised Entertainment

e Revenues consist principally of ticket sales te Imvents, sales of merchandise at these live evewision rights fees, sales
television advertising and sponsorships, and feesiéwing our pay-per-view and video-on-demandgpamming.

Consumer Products

e Revenues consist principally of the direct saleSMWE produced home videos and magazine publishirtrayalties or license fe
related to various WWE themed products such aovi@enes, toys and books.

Digital Media

e Revenues consist principally of advertising salesoor websites, sale of merchandise on our welisiteigh our WWEShop interr
storefront and sales of various broadband and macbihtent.

WWE Studios

e Revenues consist of receipts from the distributérdilmed entertainment featuring our Superstars.dite, we have partnered v
major studios to distribute our productions. We éhaecently announced plans to gsdiftribute our future filmed entertainm
productions beginning in 2010.

All intercompany transactions and balances haes leéiminated. Effective April 1, 2009, as a residlteconsidering contract element:
certain international live event contracts, thecaicting treatment for these transactions was chihpgespectively to reflect these transact
on a gross basis pursuant to relevant accountergiure. Previously, these contracts were inctyreeported on a net basis. The impact o
accounting of these contracts prior to April 1, 2@¢as not material to any of the periods preserged therefore, have not been adjusted.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates- The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally acceptedtia Unite:
States of America requires our management to makmates and assumptions that affect the reponeauats of assets and liabilities
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilitiethatdate of the financial statements and the teg@amounts of revenue and expenses durir
reporting period. Actual results could differ frahose estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents Cash and cash equivalents include cash on depositeirnight deposit accounts and investments inay
market accounts.

Investments— We classify all of our investments as availaldedale securities. Such investments consist primafilgnunicipal bond:
including pre-refunded municipal bonds, corporadeds and student loan auction rate securities, twhre classified as naurrent due t
continued failures of the auction mechanism that/igles liquidity to these investments. All of thésgestments are stated at fair value,
unrealized gains and losses on such securitiesctetl, net of tax, as other comprehensive incooss)lin stockholdergquity. Realized gail
and losses on investments are included in ear@ingsare derived using the specific identificatiogtinod for determining the cost of secur
sold.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (comued)

Accounts Receivable- Accounts receivable relate principally to amoutht® to us from pay-pesiew providers and television netwo
for pay-perview presentations and television programming, eetpely, and balances due from the sale of hordeod and magazines. (
accounts receivable represent a significant pomioour current assets. We are required to estittetecollectibility of our receivables anc
establish allowances for the amount of accountsivable that we estimate to be uncollectible. Wsebthese allowances on our histol
collection experience, the length of time our actsueceivable are outstanding and the financiabition of individual customers. Duri
2009 we recorded a $7,407 charge related to avedaleiwith a former distribution partner. Accourgseivable are written off when conside
uncollectible. Activity in the allowance for doubtfaccounts is as follows:

Balance at Charged to Balance at

beginning costs and Write-offs and end of

of period expenses other period
2009 $ 471 $ 8556 $ (1,350 $  11,92¢
2008 $ 135 $ 2521 % 83¢ $ 4,71¢
2007 $ 208 $ 47 3 773 % 1,35¢

Inventory— Inventory consists of merchandise sold on a diset#s basis, and DVDs, which are sold through veadéedistributors ar
retailers. Substantially all of our inventory isngrised of finished goods. Inventory is statedhat fower of cost (first-in, firseut basis) ¢
market. The valuation of our inventories requiresnagement to make market estimates assessing #mitps and the prices at which
believe the inventory can be sold.

Feature Films —Feature films are recorded at the cost of prodociiecluding production overhead. The costs foiratividual film will
be amortized in the proportion that revenues beamanagemerd’ estimates of the ultimate revenue expected taebegnized fror
exploitation, exhibition or sale of such film. Eadporting period management reviews, and whenssacg revises, its ultimate revenue
cost estimates, which may result in a change irrdkee of amortization of film costs and/or wrdewn of all or a portion of the unamorti:
costs of the film to its estimated fair value.

Property and Equipment— Property and equipment are stated at historicat tess accumulated depreciation and amortize
Depreciation and amortization are computed onagsttline basis over the estimated useful lives of tesets or, when applicable, the life
the lease, whichever is shorter. Vehicles and eneijt are depreciated based on estimated usefd limeying from three to five yea
Buildings and related improvements are deprecibted on estimated useful lives varying from fivéhirty-nine years. Our corporate airc
is depreciated over ten years on a straight-lirsisdass an estimated residual value of $9,500.

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets We periodically evaluate the carrying amount afigdived assets when events and circumste
warrant such a review.

Income Taxes— Deferred tax liabilities and assets are recognipedhe expected future tax consequences of evbatshave bee
reflected in the Consolidated Financial Statemebé&ferred tax liabilities and assets are determlvesed on the differences between the
and tax bases of particular assets and liabildéie® operating loss carryforwards, using tax ratesffiect for the years in which the differen
are expected to reverse. A valuation allowanceriawiged to offset deferred tax assets if, basednuthe available evidence, includ
consideration of tax planning strategies, it is ealikely-than-not that some or all of the defertar assets will not be realized.

Revenue Recognitier Revenues are generally recognized when productshépped or as services are performed. However taltie
nature of several of our business lines, theradditional steps in the revenue recognition procsslescribed below.

e Pay-per-view programming:

Revenues from our pay-pégew programming are recorded when the event edaénd are based upon our initial estimate of threlbe
of buys achieved. This initial estimate is basegmiiminary buy information received from our ppgrview distributors. Final reconciliatic
of the pay-periew buys generally occurs within one year and aopsequent adjustments to the buys are recognizéldei period ne
information is received.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (comued)
e Sponsorships:

Through our sponsorship packages, we offer acheggtia full range of our promotional vehicles, udidhg internet and print advertisii
on-air announcements and special appearances by parsdars. We assign the total sponsorship revetouttge various elements contail
within a sponsorship package based on objectiveraliable evidence of fair value and their relatia& values. Our relative fair values for
sponsorship elements are based upon a combindtiuetorical prices and current advertising marm@tditions. Revenue from these packi
is recognized as each element is delivered.

e Licensing:

Revenues from our licensed products are recogniped receipt of reports from the individual liceas that detail the royalties gener.
by related product sales. If we receive licensidgamces, such payments are recorded as deferredugwand are recognized as income \
earned.

e Home video:

Revenues from the sales of home video titles ecerded at the later of delivery by our distributmmwholesalers, or the date that tt
products are made widely available for sale byilerg net of an allowance for estimated returise allowance for estimated returns is bi
on historical information and current industry tisn

e Magazine publishing:

Publishing newsstand revenues are recorded whemé#gazine is shipped, net of an allowance fomedé&d returns. We estimate
allowance for newsstand returns based upon ouewesf historical return rates and the expectedgperénce of our current titles in relatior
prior issue return rates.

Advertising Expense- Advertising costs are expensed as incurred, eXoemosts related to the development of a majorroencial o
media campaign which are expensed in the periethioh the commercial or campaign is first presented

Foreign Currency Translatior- For the translation of the financial statementswf foreign subsidiaries whose functional currescia
not U.S. Dollars, assets and liabilities are tratesl at the yeaend exchange rate, and income statement accountsaaslated at avere
exchange rates for the year. The resulting transladjustments are recorded in accumulated otbeipeehensive income, a componer
stockholders’ equity. Foreign currency transactiaresrecorded at the exchange rate prevailingeatréimsaction date.

Stock-Based Compensation New, modified and unvested shdrased payment transactions with employees, sudtoak options
performance stock units and restricted stock umits, recognized in the financial statements basedheir fair value and recognized
compensation expense over the vesting period.

Derivative Instruments We hold warrants received from certain publiclyded companies with whom we had licensing or distidn
agreements. Warrants received from these licensess initially recorded at their estimated fair wa&lon the date of grant using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model. That amount was medras deferred revenue and is amortized into bpgrimcome over the life of the rela
agreements using straigliie amortization. For 2009, 2008 and 2007, we méed revenues of $475, $493, $493, respectivelgtae to th
amortization of deferred revenue resulting from ribeeipt of such warrants. Subsequent to recdiptwarrants are adjusted to their estim
fair value each quarter, with changes in fair vahetuded in other income (expense).

Intangible Assets- Our intangible assets consist of the cost of aeguiiim libraries which are amortized over thre@angeand acquire
trademarks and trade names which are amortizedtbras to six years. To the extent capitalized,iotamgible assets are being amortized
their estimated useful lives based on the periedassets are expected to contribute to our casls.fld/e perform impairment tests whene
events or circumstances indicate that intangilbdetasmight be impaired.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (comued)

Earnings Per Share(EPS)We present both basic and diluted EPS amountscBzRE is calculated by dividing net income by
weighted average number of common shares outstaumliring the year. Diluted EPS is based upon thghted average number of comn
and common equivalent shares outstanding duringehe which is calculated using the treassitigek method. Common equivalent share:
excluded from the computation in periods in whiceyt have an anti-dilutive effect.

Recent Accounting Pronounceme

In July 2009, the Financial Accounting Standarasmaf8 (FASB) issued authoritative guidance whictalglighed the FASB Standa
Accounting Codification ("Codification”) as the soe of authoritative GAAP recognized by the FASB® applied to nongovernmer
entities, and rules and interpretive releases ®f3RC as authoritative GAAP for SEC registrante Tlodification supersedes all the exis
non-SEC accounting and reporting standards upon iecéfe date and, subsequently, the FASB will netiésnew standards in the forn
Statements, FASB Staff Positions or Emerging IsJiaek Force Abstracts. The guidance is not intenidexthange or alter existing GAAP. 1
guidance became effective for us in the third qraof 2009. The guidance did not have an impadhenCompany's financial position, res
of operations or cash flows. All references to es numbering of FASB Statements, FASB Staff Rmsét or Emerging Issues Task Fc
Abstracts have been removed from the financiaéstahts and accompanying footnotes.

In August 2009, the FASB issued authoritative gaite on the measurement of liabilities at fair gallhe guidance provides clarificat
that in circumstances in which a quoted marketepirican active market for an identical liabilityrist available, an entity is required to mea
fair value using a valuation technique that usesgtioted price of an identical liability when trddes an asset or, if unavailable, quoted p
for similar liabilities or similar assets when teztlas assets. If none of this information is abélaan entity should use a valuation techniq
accordance with existing fair valuation principlé¢e adopted the guidance in the quarter ended Diseed1, 2009.

In May 2009, the FASB issued authoritative guidafier subsequent events. The guidance provides@iatfive accounting literatu
related to evaluating subsequent events that wasiqusly addressed only in the auditing literaturee guidance is similar to the curr
guidance with some exceptions that are not intetidedsult in significant change to current pragetithe guidance defines subsequent e
and also requires the disclosure of the date thraugich an entity has evaluated subsequent evewtshee basis for that date. The Comg
adopted the disclosure provisions of the guidarscefalune 30, 2009. The Company evaluated its DeeeBil, 2009 financial statements
subsequent events through February 24, 2010, teetlda statements were issued. The Company iswenteaof any subsequent events w
would require recognition or disclosure in the fingl statements.

In April 2009, the FASB issued authoritative guida for interim disclosures about fair value ofafigial instruments, which amen
existing guidance. The guidance requires discl@asab®aut fair value of financial instruments in hirtefinancial statements as well as in an
financial statements. The Company adopted the gimns of the guidance as of June 30, 2009. Thet@maodid not have an impact on
Company's financial position, results of operationsash flows.

In April 2009, the FASB issued authoritative guida related to determining the fair value of aretiss liability when the volume a
level of activity for the asset or liability hagsificantly decreased, which is effective for imterand annual periods ending after June 15, :
The new rules also require additional disclosumgarding the categories of fair value instrumeats,well as the inputs and valual
techniques utilized to determine fair value and ehgnges to the inputs and valuation techniqueisgltihe period. The Company adopted
provisions of the guidance as of June 30, 2009.a0wption did not have an impact on the Compairygtial position, results of operation:
cash flows.

In April 2009, the FASB issued authoritative guide related to the recognition and presentatiastizér than temporary impairments.
guidance amends existing other than temporary imait guidance for debt securities to make theandd more operational and to impr
presentation and disclosure of other than tempdmapgairments on debt and equity securities in tharfcial statements. The guidance req!
disclosures about fair value of financial instruttiseim interim financial statements as well as imwal financial statements. The Comp
adopted the provisions of the guidance as of JOn@@09. The adoption did not have an impact orlbepany's financial position, results
operations or cash flows.

F-11




WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

3. Earnings Per Share

For purposes of calculating basic and dil@arhings per share, we used the following weightetage common shares outstanding:

2009 2008 2007
Basic 73,764,60 72,888,68  71,616,12
Diluted 74,286,40  73,523,27  72,301,21
Dilutive effect of outstanding options - 61,22¢ 209,57t
Dilutive effect of restricted and performance stociits 518,38 571,03: 474,02
Dilutive effect of employee share purchase plan 3,40¢ 2,32t 1,48¢
Anti-dilutive outstanding options, end of year 192,43t 157,00( 174,40(

Net income per share of Class A Common Stouk @lass B Common Stock is computed in accordaritte avtwo- class method
earnings allocation. Any undistributed earningsdach period are allocated to each class of constamk based on the proportionate sha
the amount of cash dividends that each class ieghto receive. As there were no undistributethegs for years ended December 31, :
and 2008, basic and diluted income per share weasdime for both the Class A and Class B stockhalder
4. Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consist of acquired sports &mbenent film libraries, trademarks and trade nanwWée have classified these cost:
intangible assets and amortize them over the peafidde expected revenues to be derived from thesets, generally from three to six ye
The net carrying amount of our intangible assets $2v6 and $1,184 as of December 31, 2009 and exedit, 2008, respectively.

Amortization expense was $1,028, $1,380 and $1{88%e years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 afd, 2@spectively. Estimat
future amortization expense is $183, $71 and $2thyears ending December 31, 2010, 2011 and, 284@ectively.

5. Investment Securities and Short-Term Investments
Investments consisted of the following:

December 31, 2009

Unrealized
Holding
Amortized Gain Fair
Cost (Loss) Value
Student loan auction rate securities $ 24400 $ (2030 $ 22,37
Municipal bonds 48,10¢ 427 48,53t
Corporate bonds 9,84¢ 56 9,90t
Total $ 8235 $ (1547 $ 80,8

The unrealized holding loss of $1,547 at Ddoen31, 2009 consisted of gross losses of $2,08gaims of $514.

December 31, 2008

Unrealized
Holding
Amortized Gain Fair
Cost (Loss) Value
Student loan auction rate securities $ 2485 $ (255) $ 22,29¢
Municipal bonds 56,85« 75€ 57,61(
Other 12: (47) 76
Total $ 81827 $ (1,847 $ 79,98

The unrealized holding loss of $1,842 at Ddoen31, 2008 consisted of gross losses of $2,68@aims of $764.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

5. Investment Securities and Short-Term Investmentécontinued)

Management deems investments to be impaireghveh decline in fair value is judged to be othemttemporary. If the cost of :
investment exceeds its fair value, we evaluate,raputher factors, general market conditions, thetitn and extent to which the fair valu
less than cost, as well as the ability to hold iabeht not to sell the investment.

Starting in February 2008, we experienced difficglelling our investment in ARS due to multiplédees of the auction mechanism t
provides liquidity to these investments. The sdmsgifor which auctions have failed will continwedaccrue interest and be auctioned evel
days until the auction succeeds, the issuer dadissecurities, or they mature. Accordingly, themyrbe no effective mechanism for sel
these securities and we may own long-term secsiritis such, we have classified our investment 18 AR norcurrent investments. As
December 31, 2009, the Company had approximate2y3%P of student loan auction rate securities whiate been valued at their estimi
fair value, based on a discounted cash flow amaiich considered, among other things, the qualitthe underlying collateral, the cre
rating of the issuers, an estimate of when theseries are either expected to have a successfiilom or otherwise return to par value
expected interest income to be received over thitog. Because of the inherent subjectivity in raduthese securities, we also obtai
independent valuations for each of our ARS as afdb@er 31, 2009 in estimating their fair values.

As of December 31, 2009 we do not believeutnealized loss position in these securities 0032,is other-thatemporary, and as su
the unrealized loss has been recorded as partofradated other comprehensive income in our Codatdd Statement of StockholdeEsjuity
and Comprehensive Income. We do not feel that #irevilue adjustment is other-théemporary at this time due to the high underl
creditworthiness of the issuer (including the bagkof the loans comprising the collateral packagéhle United States Government), and b
on our intent not to sell the securities and odrebehat it is not more likely than not that wellWlbe required to sell the securities be
recovery of their anticipated amortized cost basis.

In addition to the investments described aboveailge hold warrants which we received from cergaiblicly traded companies w
whom we had licensing agreements. The estimateddhie of these warrants, determined using thelB&choles model, was $77, $1,127
$4,158 as of December 31, 2009, December 31, 200®acember 31, 2007, respectively, and is includexther current assets at Decen
31, 2009. We recognized mark to market adjustmeh${1,050), $(3,031) and $(1,178) during 2009,&@6d 2007, respectively, relating
these warrants, which is included in other expensg,

6. Fair Value Measurement

Effective January 1, 2008, the Company adopted aethoritative guidance that requires fair valuebto determined based on
exchange price that would be received to sell aptas paid to transfer a liability in the prindiget most advantageous market for the ass
liability in an orderly transaction between marletrticipants at the measurement date. Fair value rsarketbased measurement basec
assumptions that "market participants" would us@rioe the asset or liability. Accordingly, the rfrawork considers markets or observ
inputs as the preferred source of value followedabgumptions based on hypothetical transactionteirabsence of market inputs. The
value should be calculated based on assumptiohsniduket participants would use in pricing the assdiability, not on assumptions spec
to the entity. In addition, the fair value of assand liabilities should include consideration oh#performance risk including the Compal
own credit risk.

Additionally, the guidance establishes a tHexel hierarchy that ranks the quality and religgpibf information used in developing f
value estimates. The hierarchy gives the highéstiprto quoted prices in active markets and thedst priority to unobservable data. In ci
where two or more levels of inputs are used torddtee fair value, a financial instrument's levelistermined based on the lowest level i
that is considered significant to the fair valueasi@ement in its entirety. The three levels offtlievalue hierarchy are summarized as follows:

Level 1- quoted prices in active markets €taritical assets or liabilities;
Level 2- quoted prices in active markets forikar assets and liabilities and inputs that dssesvable for the asset or liability; or
Level 3- unobservable inputs, such as dis@minash flow models or valuations
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

6. Fair Value Measurement (continued)

The following assets are required to be measutediavalue on a recurring basis and the classiiim within the hierarchy as
December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, resphrctive

Significant
Other Significant
Quoted Market Observable Unobservable Fair Value at
Prices in Active Inputs Inputs December 31,
Markets (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 2009
Municipal bonds $ - $ 4853 % - $ 48,53
Auction rate securities - - 22,37( 22,37(
Corporate bonds - 9,90¢ - 9,90¢
Other - 77 - 77
Total $ - $ 58517 $ 2237( $ 80,88
Significant
Other Significant
Quoted Market Observable Unobservable Fair Value at
Prices in Active Inputs Inputs December 31,
Markets (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 2008
Municipal bonds $ - $ 5761 % - $ 57,61
Auction rate securities - - 22,29¢ 22,29¢
Other 76 1,125 - 1,20:
Total $ 76 $ 5873 $ 2229¢ $ 81,11

Certain financial instruments are carried@t®n the consolidated balance sheets, which ajppates fair value due to their shaetrm
highly liquid nature. The carrying amounts of cashsh equivalents, money market accounts, accaectivable and accounts pay:
approximate fair value because of the short-tertareaof such instruments. Our short-term investsang carried at fair value.

We have classified our investment in ARS withirvéke3. Starting in February 2008, we experiencdficdity selling our investment
ARS due to multiple failures of the auction meckanithat provided liquidity to these investmentse Becurities have been classified wi
Level 3 as their valuation requires substantiabjudnt and estimation of factors that are not ctiyexbservable in the market due to the
of trading in the securities. The fair value of RS, as consistent with prior periods, was estuahrough discounted cash flow moc
which consider, among other things, the timing xjfexted future successful auctions, collaterabratif underlying security investments .
the risk of default by the issuer. We will contintee assess the carrying value of our ARS on eapbrtiag date, based on the facts
circumstances surrounding our liquidity needs aenetbpments in the ARS markets.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

6. Fair Value Measurement (continued)

The table below includes a roll forward of dawvel 3 assets (ARS) from January 1 to Decembéoi32008 and 2009.

Significant

Unobservable Inputs

(Level 3)
2009 2008
Fair value January 1 $ 2229¢ $ =
Purchases - -
Redemptions/Proceeds (450 (9,500
Transfers in - 34,35(
Realized gain - -
Unrealized gain (loss) 521 (2,557
Fair value December 31 $ 2237 $ 22,29¢
7. Property and Equipment
Property and equipment consisted of the fathow
December 31, December 31,
2009 2008
Land, buildings and improvements $ 74,36 $ 72,06
Equipment 67,527 71,14C
Corporate aircraft 20,85¢ 20,85¢
Vehicles 537 634
163,28! 164,69:
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (78,909 (72,32¢)
Total $ 84,37¢ $ 92,36
Depreciation expense was $13,396, $11,703@r880, in 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
8. Feature Film Production Assets
Feature film production assets are summarézefllows:
December 31, December 31,
2009 2008
Feature film productions:
In release $ 27,770 $ 5,871
Completed but not released - 22,66¢
In production 8,47: 2,17:
In development 80¢ 947
Total $ 37,05 $ 31,65°
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

8. Feature Film Production Assets (continued)

We have released four theatrical fillBge No Evi] The Marine, The Condemnednd12 Rounds. 12 Roundgs released iB009 alon
with two Direct-to-DVD films,Behind Enemy Lines: Colombénd The Marine 2Due to lower than expected performance, we recoedt
impairment charge of $1,940 in 2008 relatingte No Eviand a $15,662 impairment charge in 2007 relatinthi® Condemned

Feature film production assets are recoragdhthe associated benefit of production incesgtivDuring 2009 and 2008 we received $4
and $0, respectively, of film production incentifesm domestic and international production aciiat

Unamortized feature film production assets arduatad for impairment each reporting period. If #stimated revenue is not sufficien
recover the unamortized asset, the asset will litgewrdown to fair value. As of December 31, 208@, do not believe any capitalized as
included in Feature Film Production Assets are ingola

We estimate that approximately 33% of “In asle’film production assets will be amortized over tlextntwelve months. Approximate
79% of “In release” film production assets areraated to be amortized over the following three gear

We currently have two theatrical films pmeduction and have capitalized certain script tgreent costs for various other film proje
Capitalized script development costs are evaluatezhch reporting period for impairment if, and whe project is deemed to be abandc
Approximately $828, $886 and $367 of previouslyitaized development costs were expensed for abrwtiprojects in 2009, 2008 and 2(
respectively.

9. Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities

Accrued expenses and other liabilities cordistf the following:

December 31, December 31,
2009 2008

Accrued pay-per-view event costs $ 399 % 4,10¢
Accrued payroll and bonus related costs 11,49¢ 7,97
Accrued legal and professional fees 3,46% 2,17:
Accrued home video production and distribution 4,76t 2,81¢
Accrued other 11,44: 10,05!
Total $ 3516 $ 27,12

Accrued other includes accruals for our publishietgvision, and licensing business activities,emofwhich exceeds 5% of current liabilities.

10. Debt

In 1997, we entered into a mortgage loan agreenmafér which we borrowed $12,000 at an annual ésterate of 7.6% with a matur
date of December 31, 2013. Principal and intenestabe paid in 180 monthly installments of apfmmately $112. The loan is collateralized
our executive offices and television studio in Stauth, Connecticut.

As of December 31, 2009 the scheduled prihcggEayments under our mortgage obligation wer@kmsws:

For the year ending December 31, 2010 1,08
For the year ending December 31, 2011 1,16¢
For the year ending December 31, 2012 1,262
For the year ending December 31, 2013 35¢
Total $ 3,87

F-16




WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

11. Income Taxes

For 2009, 2008 and 2007, we were taxed on oumiectyom continuing operations at an effective tate rof 36.7%, 34.5% and 31.¢
respectively. Our income tax provision related tw mcome from continuing operations for 2009, 2@0®i 2007 was $29,127, $23,940
$24,337, respectively, and included federal, siat&foreign taxes.

The components of our tax provision from cowithg operations were as follows:

2009 2008 2007
Current:

Federal $ 24,52 $ 16,08¢ $ 27,99

State and local 3,59¢ 26E 3,70¢

Foreign 338 981 57
Deferred:

Federal 1,33 6,45: (6,727

State and local (644) 161 (702)

Foreign (22) 9 -
Total $ 29,127 $  23,94( $ 24,33

Components of income before income taxes sifelws:
2009 2008 2007

U.S. $ 7858( $ 67,720 $ 76,20
International subsidiaries 85C 1,63: 26¢
Income before income taxes $ 7943( $ 6935 $ 76,47

The following sets forth the difference betweea firovision for income taxes from continuing opierag computed at the U.S. fed:s
statutory income tax rate of 35% and that repditedinancial statement purposes:

2009 2008 2007
Statutory U.S. federal tax at 35% $ 27,80( $ 24,27t $ 26,77:
State and local taxes, net of federal benefit 1,05¢ 90¢ 1,95¢
Foreign rate differential (250 264 (38)
Tax exempt interest income (57€) (1,489 (2,664
Valuation allowance (1,590 10¢ 61C
Unrecognized tax benefits 3,02¢ (23€) (2,177)
Other (441) 10¢ (121)
Provision for income taxes $ 29,127 $  23,94( $ 24,33
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

11. Income Taxes (continued)

The tax effects of temporary differences that gige to significant portions of the deferred tasets and deferred tax liabilities of contint
operations consisted of the following

December 31, December 31,
2009 2008

Deferred tax assets:
Accounts receivable $ 4,291 $ 1,717
Inventory 4,197 3,83(
Prepaid royalties 6,54( 2,01t
Stock options/stock compensation 1,101 1,52¢
Credits and net operating loss carryforwards 1,22t 1,15(C
Investments 56¢ 2,44
Intangible assets 3,14 3,10(¢
Feature film production asset - -
Accrued liabilities and reserves 711 1,24:
Indirect income tax benefit 3,052 2,26¢
Deferred tax assets, gross 24,83( 19,29¢
Valuation allowance (1,219 (2,78¢)
Deferred tax assets, net 23,61¢ 16,51
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property and equipment depreciation (3,499 (3,059
Feature film production asset (14,639 (6,385
Total deferred tax assets, net $ 5,48¢ $ 7,07:

The temporary differences described above reptektfarences between the tax basis of assetabilities and amounts reported in
consolidated financial statements that will resnltaxable or deductible amounts in future yeargmvthe reported amounts of the asse
liabilities are recovered or settled. As of DecentbE 2009 and December 31, 2008, $11,655 and $7r&&pectively, of the net deferred
assets are included in prepaid expenses and athemt assets and the remaining $(6,171) and $(é6pectively, is included in other non-
current income tax liabilities in our consolidatealance sheets.

As of December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008)adevaluation allowances of $1,214 and $2,788,eetspely, to reduce our defer
tax assets to an amount more likely than not teelsevered. This remaining valuation allowance esgb losses incurred as a result of
Australian film entities, and are not expectedeadalized.

We are subject to periodic audits of our variasreturns by government agencies which could résydossible tax liabilities. Althoug
the outcome of these matters cannot currently bermiéned, we believe the outcome of these auditsnet have a material effect on ¢
financial statements.

U.S. income taxes have been provided on unreméedings of our Brazilian entity and our Australfdm entities due to the fact tt
WWE expects to remit all earnings from these etitl).S. income taxes will be provided for unresditearnings of any future special purg
entity film company because of the tentative natfreuch entities.

U.S. income taxes have not been provided for gmagimately $4,100 of unremitted earnings of ounaéing international subsidiari
These earnings are expected to be indefinitelyesited overseas. It is not practical to computeetanated deferred tax liability on th
earnings. Any additional U.S. taxes payable onrémeaining foreign earnings, if remitted, would hastantially offset by credits for forei
taxes already paid.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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11. Income Taxes (continued)
Unrecognized Tax Benefits

In July 2006, the FASB issued authoritative guaaregarding accounting for the uncertainty in meaaxes. The guidance clarifies
accounting for income taxes by prescribing a minimqrobability threshold that a tax position mustetigefore a financial statement benef
recognized. As a result of the implementation a$ thuidance on January 1, 2007, we recognized &02lincrease in the liability f
unrecognized income tax benefits, with a correspandecrease in the opening balance of retainedrezs.

At the adoption date of January 1, 2007, we hatiiB ($10,382 net of federal benefit) of unrecagditax benefits and related inter
all of which would affect our effective tax raté recognized. At December 31, 2009 and DecembefB08, we had $10,981 ($7,928 ne
federal benefit) and $7,231 ($4,963 net of fedbmaiefit), respectively, of unrecognized tax besedihd related interest and penalties, &
which would affect our effective tax rate if recamgd.

We file income tax returns in the U.S., variowstess and various foreign jurisdictions. With a fexceptions, all tax years before April
2005 are no longer subject to income tax examinatioy tax authorities. Based upon the expiratiorstatutes of limitations in seve
jurisdictions, the Company believes it is reasopgimssible that the total amount of previously gognized tax benefits may decreast
approximately $1,637 within 12 months of DecembkrZ009.

Unrecognized Tax benefits Tabular Reconciliation

2009 2008 2007
Beginning Balance- January 1 $ 6,08 $ 9,541 $ 10,51«
Increase to unrecognized tax benefits recordegddsitions taken

during the current year 3,087 1,78 1,94¢
Increase (decrease) to unrecognized tax benefitsded for positions tak

during a prior period 27¢ (210 (985)
Decrease in unrecognized tax benefits relatingtibesnents with

taxing authorities (70 (3,049 —
Decrease to unrecognized tax benefits resulting frdapse of the

applicable statute of limitations (142) (2,082 (1,937
Ending Balance- December 31 $ 923 $ 608 $ 954

We recognize potential accrued interest and pesatelated to uncertain tax positions in income éapense. We have approxima
$1,485 of accrued interest and $210 of accruedlpesnaelated to uncertain tax positions as of Deser 31, 2009. At December 31, 2008
had approximately $920 of accrued interest and $22&crued penalties related to uncertain taxtjpos.

12. Film and Television Production Incentives

The Company has access to various governmentgigns that are designed to promote film and tal@viproduction within the Unite
States and certain international jurisdictionselmo/es earned with respect to expenditures onifgumg film, television and other productic
are included as an offset to our investment indilon production expenses when we have reasonahleaase regarding the realizable am
of the credits. During 2009 we received $4,289necEntives relating to feature film productions &8J330 of incentives relating to televis
and other productions.
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13. Commitments and Contingencies

We have certain commitments, including variows-cancelable operating leases, performance contveititsvarious performers a
employment agreements with certain executive affice

Future minimum payments as of December 319 20@ler the agreements described above were awfoll

Operating
Lease Other
Commitments Commitments Total
For the year ending December 31, 2010 $ 2,06¢ $ 16,80 $ 18,85¢
For the year ending December 31, 2011 1,297 7,12( 8,417
For the year ending December 31, 2012 95¢ 5,48¢ 6,43¢
For the year ending December 31, 2013 84¢ 3,30¢ 4,15:
For the year ending December 31, 2014 741 2,44¢ 3,18¢
Thereafter 2,33¢ 3,70¢ 6,04t
Total $ 823t $ 3886 $ 47,09

Rent expense under operating leases includedritincing operations was approximately $2,646, $2,d@6d $2,609 for 2009, 2008
2007, respectively.

Legal Proceeding:
World Wide Fund for Nature

In April 2000, the World Wide Fund for Natuaad its American affiliate, the World Wildlife Fur(dollectively, the “Fund”)institutec
legal proceedings against us in the English Higlur€seeking injunctive relief and unspecified dassmgdor alleged breaches of a 1
agreement between the Fund and us regarding thefdke initials “wwf”. In August 2001, a High Court judge granted the Fanabtion fo
summary judgment, holding that we breached theemgeat by using the initials “wwfih connection with certain of our website address®
our former scratch logo. The English Court of Adpa#bsequently upheld that ruling. As a result we subject to an injunction barring
either directly or indirectly, from most uses oétimitials “wwf.”

As part of its original complaint, the Fund inclada damages claim. On October 29, 2004, the Fledi di claim for, among other thin
substantial monetary claims in an amount calcula@®d royalty based on certain percentages of mfitpover the period January 1¢
through November 2002. The English courts haveedkttie Fund’s claim for profitased damages. We strongly believe that the Fusichd
suffered any loss or damage, and would vigorousfemtl against any other type of damage claim ifRined attempted, after so many year
amend its complaint to assert one. Based upon ehisidns of the English courts, we do not belidvis matter will have a material adve
effect on our financial condition, results of ogeas or liquidity.

THQ/Jakks

Since October 19, 2004, we were involved irioes litigations against Jakks Pacific, Inc. (“dgR, two foreign subsidiaries of Jak
THQ Inc. (“THQ") and THQ/Jakks Pacific LLC (“THQ/B&s LLC"), in connection with our videogame license then feafwith THQ/Jakk
LLC. On December 22, 2009, we reached a globadksstint with respect to these litigations and as gfathis settlement, THQ paid us $1
million and WWE and THQ entered into a new eighétyeideo game license beginning January 1, 2010.

IPO Class Actior

In December 2001, a purported class action comipteés filed against us and certain of our offiderthe United States District Court
the Southern District of New York alleging violat® of federal securities laws relating to our alifpublic offering in 1999. According to t
claims, the underwriters, who were also named &sndants, allegedly engaged in manipulative prastizy, among other things, pseHinc
allotments of shares of our stock in return forigoldsed, excessive commissions from the purchasedbr entering into after-market ire-
arrangements to artificially inflate the Compasystock price. The complaint further alleges that kmew or should have known of s
unlawful practices. In or around March 2009, thetipa agreed to a global settlement of the litigratin its entirety. On April 2, 2009, t
plaintiffs filed a motion for preliminary approvaf settlement, which was granted by the court ljeodated June 10, 2009. On Octobr
2009, the court granted final approval of the sat#nt agreement, and various objectors have fitgites to appeal this decision. We
unable to predict whether these appeals will beesgful.
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13. Commitments and Contingencies (continued)
Other Matters

We are not currently a party to any other matdeghl proceedings. However, we are involved inesalvother suits and claims in
ordinary course of business, the outcome of whicimat expected to have a material adverse effeausnfinancial condition, results
operations or liquidity. We may from time to timedmme a party to other legal proceedings.

14. Related Party Transactions

Vincent K. McMahon, Chairman of the Board of Di@s and Chief Executive Officer, along with hisfevLinda E. McMahon, contr
approximately 88% of the voting power of the iss@ed outstanding shares of our common stock. Thrdhgir beneficial ownership of
substantial majority of our Class B common stock, &hd Mrs. McMahon can effectively exercise cohtneer our affairs.

In February 2008, the Company increased its qugntiévidend from $.24 to $.36 per share. At thaid, the McMahon family and th
trusts entered into an agreement with the Companyaive the increased portion of the dividend fbshares of Class A and Class B comi
stock beneficially held by the family for a periofithree years, subject to early termination ingkent of Vincent K. McMahon'’s death.

On September 16, 2009, Linda McMahon resignedrasf Executive Office of the Company and announivedcandidacy for the Unit
States Senate, representing the state of Conneckits. McMahon$ election team engaged the Company to produceimcerlevisiol
advertisements during the initial months of the paign. The Company performed these services andjethdahe campaign the fair mar
value for the provided television production seegicapproximately $162. In addition, Mrs. McMahemted personal office space from
Company for a period of two and one half monthswbich the Company received approximately $23, Whapresented the fair market ve
of the office space utilized.

In June 2008, the Company performed a branarewess campaign entitted McMaheMillion Dollar Mania™, whereby a total
$3,000 in cash prize awards was given away to vieweour Monday Night Raw television program. Tgreze money for this campaign v
personally funded by Vincent K. McMahon. As sudte Company received a capital contribution of $Q,98presenting the net of tax img
to WWE for the prize money awarded to the selectedestants.

WWE currently holds an employment contract witm&&nt K. McMahon, which runs through October 20With annual renewa
thereafter if not terminated by us or Mr. McMahémaddition, Mr. McMahon holds a talent contracattis coterminous with his employm
contract. Mr. McMahon waives all of his compensatimder these agreements, except for a salarytf §8r year.

15. Stockholders’ Equity

Our Class B common stock is fully convertible i@tass A common stock, on a one for one basishatime at the option of the hold
The two classes are entitled to equal per shaidatids and distributions and vote together as ssakdth each share of Class B entitled tc
votes and each share of Class A entitled to one, except when separate class voting is requirezpbplicable law. If, at any time, any she
of Class B common stock are beneficially owned by person other than Vincent McMahon, Linda McMahany descendant of either
them, any entity which is wholly owned and is cofied by any combination of such persons or angttrall the beneficiaries of which are
combination of such persons, each of those shaileswtomatically convert into shares of Class Antoon stock. Through his benefic
ownership of a substantial majority of our Classd@nmon stock, our controlling stockholder, Vincéh¢tMahon, can effectively exerci
control over our affairs, and his interests cowddftict with the holders of our Class A common $toc

F-21




WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

15. Stockholders’ Equity (continued)

Beginning in February 2008, the Board of Directaushorized an increase in the quarterly cash diddto $0.36 per share on all Clas
common shares not held by the McMahon family. Thargprly dividend on all Class B shares, held byniers of the McMahon family a
their respective trusts, will remain at $0.24 pard period of three years, through February 2014 paid four quarterly dividends of $0.36
share, or $36,504, on all Class A common share$@ritdl per share, or $45,765, on all Class B comshanes in 2009.

16. Share Based Compensation

The 2007 Omnibus Incentive Plan (“2007 Plapfyvides for grants of options and other forms gfity-based incentive awards
determined by the compensation committee of therdBo& Directors as incentives and rewards to eregeiemployees, directors, consult
and performers to participate in our long-term sssc Prior to the 2007 Plan, share based compensedis governed by the Company’s Long-
Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP"). In 2004, we beganussgy restricted stock units (“RSUs"yhich generally vest annually. Current gr:
outstanding have vesting periods between threesaweh years. In July 2007, we began issuing pegnee stock units (“PSUsiy addition tc
RSUs.

As of December 31, 2009 there were approximaté@yndillion shares available for future grants untter 2007 Plan. It is our policy
issue new shares to satisfy option exercises anddbting of RSUs and PSUs.

Stock based compensation cost was $7,389, $718b64777 for 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively tBial recognized tax benefit v
$2,808, $3,023 and $2,955 for 2009, 2008 and 2@3pectively.

The benefits of tax deductions in excess of reizsghcompensation costs are required to be repaddthancing cash flows, rather tl
as operating cash flows as previously required. thkebenefits in excess of recognized compensatish for 2009, 2008 and 2007 were $.
$1,081 and $841, respectively.

Stock Options

We have not granted any stock options sinoe 2004. The following table summarizes stock apéotivity for 2009:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Exercise Contractue Intrinsic
Stock Options Shares Price Term Value
Outstanding at December 31, 2008 645,38t $ 14.0C 15 $ 0
Exercised (179,82) $ 13.01 - $ 21z
Forfeited/Expired (273129 $ 15.2¢ — -
Outstanding at December 31, 2009 192,43t $ 13.1¢ 16 $ 421
Vested at December 31, 2009 192,43t $ 13.1¢ 16 $ 421
Exercisable at December 31, 2009 192,43t $ 13.1¢ 16 $ 421

As of December 31, 2009, there is no additionahpensation cost related to unvested options thatniod yet been recognized. '
estimate forfeitures, based on historical trendsenvrecognizing compensation expense associatdéd statk options, and will adjust ¢
estimate of forfeitures when they are expectedfterd The intrinsic value of options exercised vegpproximately $213, $2,730 and $2,03¢
2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Cash received from option exercises undestedtebased payment arrangements was $2,340, $6,2686ahd0#or 2009, 2008 and 20
respectively. Tax benefits realized from tax denunst associated with stock option exercises tot&tEsB, $1,037, $774 for 2009, 2008
2007, respectively.
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16. Share Based Compensation (continued)
Restricted Stock Units

The fair value of RSUs is determined based omtimaber of shares granted and the quoted price oé@uamon stock on the grant d;
The fair value of restricted stock units is recaguai as expense over the service period, net ahatsd forfeitures, using the straidime
method. We estimate forfeitures, based on histbtieads, when recognizing compensation expensedjust the estimate of forfeitures wi
they are expected to differ. For the year endedeber 31, 2009, we estimate that 8% of the curyeat’s restricted stock units will
forfeited over the life of the grant.

During 2009, we granted 45,000 RSUs at a wedjlaverage price per share of $11.54 and an aggregantdate fair value ¢
approximately $519. Such issuances were granteaffimers and employees under our 2007 Plan. Wegrzed $1,609 of compensat
expense associated with restricted stock unitschwhias classified as selling, general and admatise expense. Tax benefits realized f
RSU related compensation expense totaled $611.

We granted 105,000 and 190,750 RSUs in 20082807, respectively, with an aggregate gidate fair value of approximately $1,¢
and $3,063, respectively. During 2008 and 2007,reeognized $1,867 and $4,931, respectively, of @msgtion expense associated
restricted stock units, which was classified abrgglgeneral and administrative expense. During&8and 2007, tax benefits realized from F
related compensation expense totaled $709 and 41I83pectively.

The following table summarizes the activityrestricted stock units:

Weighted Average Grant

Restricted Stock Units Shares Date Fair Value
Unvested at December 31, 2008 401,99( $ 15.7¢
Granted 45,00( $ 11.5¢
Vested (237,47) $ 16.17
Forfeited/Expired (44,340 $ 15.57
Dividends 38,50¢ $ 12.0(
Unvested at December 31, 2009 203,68t ¢ 14.2:

The grant date fair value of restricted stooks vested was $3,828, $7,240 and $6,476 for 228088 and 2007, respectively.

As of December 31, 2009 there was $875 of totaéawgnized compensation cost related to unvestddsR& be recognized ove
weighted-average period of approximately 0.7 yeBesed on the current restricted stock units ontlitey, $666 of compensation exper
will be recognized in 2010 and the remaining $2@8kve recognized from 2011 to 2012.

Performance Stock Units

The estimated grant of PSUs is communicated td@mps on the communication date, with the amoéithe grant based on achiev
predetermined financial metrics. The estimated remall PSUs expected to be issued is adjusted glyat@sed on the current performanc
the Company. The ultimate number of PSUs thatsseid to an employee is a result of the actuabpaence of the Company compared tc
performance targets.

The fair value of PSUs is initially determined &éa®n the number of shares granted and the quotsglqdf our common stock on the gr
date. The fair value of performance stock unitegnized as expense over the service periodyfredtimated forfeitures, using the straight-
line method. We estimate forfeitures, based orohigsdl trends, when recognizing compensation expamsl adjust the estimate of forfeitt
when they are expected to differ. For the year érdlecember 31, 2009, we estimate that 8% of theentiyears performance stock grants \
be forfeited over the life of the grant.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

16. Share Based Compensation (continued)

During 2009, we issued approximately 586,500 P&Ua weighted average price per share of $9.9%aasof our 2007 Omnibi
Incentive Plan. Based on the financial resultstiieryear ended December 31, 2009, approximately0@65PSUs are expected to be issut
2010 related to this grant. The estimated compemsakpense is $10,785 and the PSUs will vestneetlannual installments beginning in .
2010. In 2009, we recognized $5,580 of compensatigrense associated with performance stock unhghws classified as selling, gene
and administrative expense. Tax benefits realirah PSU related compensation expense totaled $2,120

During 2008, we issued approximately 471,500 P&part of our 2007 Omnibus Incentive Plan. Basethe financial results for t
year ended December 31, 2008, approximately 31(P&0s were ultimately issued in 2009 related te ghant. In 2008, we recognized $5,
of compensation expense associated with performatumk units, which was classified as selling, gahand administrative expense.
benefits realized from PSU related compensatioresg totaled $2,219.

During 2007, we issued approximately 475,000 P®Uih were subject to performance goals establisbedhe last two quarters
2007. As these goals were exceeded, approxima8&8y080 PSUs were ultimately issued in 2008 rel&tetthis grant. In 2007, we recogni:
$2,345 of compensation expense associated witlonpeshce stock units, which is classified as sellgeneral and administrative expense.
benefits realized from PSU related compensatioresg totaled $891.

The following table summarizes the activitypefiformance stock units:

Weighted Average

Performance Stock Units Shares Grant Date Fair Value
Unvested at December 31, 2008 783,57¢ $ 17.5¢
Adjustment (67,36) % 18.8:

Granted 586,50( $ 9.91

Vested (259,360 % 17.1¢
Forfeited/Expired (219,52) % 15.8¢
Dividends 59,38¢ $ 12.0¢
Unvested at December 31, 2009 883,21( $ 12.91

As of December 31, 2009 there was $8,209 of tatabcognized compensation cost related to unvd28idis to be recognized ove
weightedaverage period of approximately 0.9 years. Basedhencurrent PSUs outstanding, $5,083 of compessatxpense will t
recognized in 2010 and the remaining $3,126 wiltdmgnized during 2011 and 2012.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

We provide a stock purchase plan for our eyg#s. Under the plan, all regular ftilhe employees may contribute up to 10% of !
base compensation (subject to certain income [jrtitshe semannual purchase of shares of our common stock plinghase price is 85%
the fair market value at certain pldefined dates. As this plan is defined as compengad charge is recorded for the difference betwtae
fair market value and the discounted price. In 2@@® purchases occurred and resulted in a $20@ehApproximately 150 employees w
participants in the stock purchase plan and thegdayees purchased approximately 67,476 sharearaf@mmon stock at an average pric
$8.80 per share.
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17. Employee Benefit Plans

We sponsor a 401(k) defined contribution plan cioge substantially all employees. Under this plparticipants are allowed to me
contributions based on a percentage of their sslagubject to a statutorily prescribed annualtlivie make matching contributions of
percent of each participast’contributions, up to 6% of eligible compensatiomximum 3% matching contribution). We may also g
additional discretionary contributions to the 4QL(kan. Our expense for matching contributions additional discretionary contributions
the 401(k) plan was $1,171, $1,136 and $1,010 d@&d09, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

18. Segment Information

Revenues derived from sales outside of North Ataewere approximately $127,096, $135,183 and $989%@r 2009, 2008 and 20(
respectively. Revenues generated in the United ddng our largest international market, were appnately $36,516, $47,301 and $45,
for 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

We do not allocate corporate overhead to eacheofégments and as a result, corporate overhe@acktonciling item in the table belc
There are no intersegment revenues. The activifieach segment are summarized in Note 1.

The table presents information about the finarmaallts of each segment for 2009, 2008 and 20Q&sasets as of December 31, 200¢
December 31, 2008. Unallocated assets consist plynoé cash, investments and fixed assets.

2009 2008 2007
Net revenues
Live and Televised Entertainment $ 334,99: $ 331,45 $ 316,84.
Consumer Products 99,74( 135,66 118,08
Digital Media 32,757 34,82 34,77
WWE Studios 7,671 24,512 15,95¢
Total net revenues $ 475,16: $ 526,45’ $ 485,65
Depreciation and amortization:
Live and Televised Entertainment $ 7,67C $ 6,37¢ $ 3,62¢
Consumer Products 1,02¢ 1,38¢ 1,38¢
Digital Media 1,26: 1,204 83€
Corporate 4,46% 4,121 3,47(
Total depreciation and amortization $ 14,42: $ 13,08: $ 9,31¢
Operating income:
Live and Televised Entertainment $ 124,68: $ 92,38¢ $ 100,16:
Consumer Products 52,67 76,47 68,64:
Digital Media 5,79t 6,182 6,29:
WWE Studios 2,17¢ 7,18¢ (14,749
Corporate (108,199 (111,94 (91,920
Total operating income $ 77138 $ 70,281 $  68,43:
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18. Segment Information (continued)

Assets:

WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

Live and Televised Entertainment

Consumer Products
Digital Media

WWE Studios
Unallocated

Total assets

19. Concentration of Credit Risk

We continually monitor our position with, and theedit quality of, the financial institutions thate counterparties to our finant

As of:
December 31, 20C

December 31, 20C

$ 14191 3 110,26:
21,52 19,91(

7,111 10,43(

43,18¢ 52,56¢
226,88t 236,23¢

$ 440,62: $ 429,41(

instruments. Our accounts receivable representgaifisiant portion of our current assets and relptcipally to a limited number

distributors, including our pay-peiew and home video distributors. We closely manitee status of receivables with these customed
maintain allowances for anticipated losses. Oupaets receivable represent a significant portionwfcurrent assets and relate principally
limited number of customers, including televisipay-perview and home video distributors. During the yeee, recorded a $7,407 charge
bad debt expense related to a receivable due frpre\aous distribution partner. The Company closalynitors the status of receivables \
our customers and maintains allowances for antietpéosses as deemed appropriate. Our total allosvéor doubtful accounts balance »
$11,926 as of December 31, 2009 and $4,718 as oérbieer 31, 2008. Bad debt expense was approxim@&hb8 for the year end

December 31, 2009, and $2,521 for the year endedrblieer 31, 2008.

20. Quarterly Financial Summaries (unaudited)

2009

Net revenue
Cost of revenues
Net income

Earnings per common share: basic

Net income

Earnings per common share: diluted

Net income

2008

Net revenue
Cost of revenues
Net income

Earnings per common share: basic

Net income

Earnings per common share: diluted

Net income

1stQuarter 2 nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4t Quarter
$ 107,82! $ 138,79 $ 111,25« $ 117,28t
$ 56,43 $ 75,75( $ 60,07 $ 63,58
$ 10,32 $ 19,87¢ $ 8,93¢ $ 11,16¢
$ 0.14 $ 0.27 $ 0.1 $ 0.1t
$ 0.14 $ 0.27 $ 0.1 $ 0.1t
$ 162,63: $ 129,65¢ $ 108,78: $ 125,38
$ 100,01¢ $ 76,35¢ $ 66,27¢ $ 69,12¢
$ 19,52¢ $ 7,031 $ 5,27¢ $ 13,58¢
$ 0.27 $ 0.1C $ 0.07 $ 0.1¢
$ 0.27 $ 0.1C $ 0.07 $ 0.1¢
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

SCHEDULE Il — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
(dollars in thousands)

Additions
Balance at Charged to Balance at
Beginning Costs and End of
Description of Period Expenses Deductions (1) Period
For the Year Ended December 31, 2009
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 4,71¢ $ 8,55¢ $ (1,350 $ 11,92¢
Inventory obsolescence reserve 8,95¢ 1,991 (699 10,24°
Magazine publishing allowance for newsstartdrres 6,26¢ 28,35! (29,799 4,82
Home video allowance for returns 6,26¢ 19,09: (29,829 5,53t
For the Year Ended December 31, 2008
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 1,35¢ $ 2,521 $ 83¢ $ 4,71¢
Inventory obsolescence reserve 6,27¢ 2,67¢ - 8,95¢
Magazine publishing allowance for newsstandrres 4,80¢ 32,59¢ (31,139 6,26¢
Home video allowance for returns 6,622 18,80¢ (19,166¢) 6,26¢
For the Year Ended December 31, 2007
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 2,08¢ $ 47 $ (779 $ 1,35¢
Inventory obsolescence reserve 4,891 1,037 (349 6,27¢
Magazine publishing allowance for newsstandrres 4,07¢ 23,47: (22,740 4,80¢
Home video allowance for returns 8,51( 17,66¢ (19,559 6,622

(1) Deductions are comprised primarily of disposdlsbsolete inventory, write-offs of specific bdebts, and returns.
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SUBSIDIARIES OF WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

(All subsidiaries are wholly-owned, directly or inettly)
TSI Realty Company (a Delaware corporation)
World Wrestling Entertainment Canada, Inc. (a Céaradorporation)
Stephanie Music Publishing, Inc. (a Connecticupooation)
The World Entertainment, LLC (a Delaware limiteahlility company)*
World Wrestling Entertainment (International) Lieit (a UK corporation)
WWE Sports, Inc. (a Delaware corporation)
Event Services, Inc. (a Delaware corporation)
WWE Studios, Inc. (a Delaware corporation)
- WWE Films Development, Inc. (a Delaware corpanai
- WWE Films Development Funding (LA), LL(@ Louisiana limited liability company)
- WWE Films Production (LA), LLC (auisiana limited liability company)
- WWE Nola, LLC (a Louisiana limitdidbility company)
- Marine Productions (a California corporajion
- Marine 2 Productions, Inc. (a Califore@poration)
- Marine Productions Australia Pty Limitegh Australia corporation)
- Eye Scream Productions (a California corpord
- Eye Scream Man Productions AustralialRtyited (an Australia corporation)
- Condemned Productions, Inc. (a Californigpooation)
- Condemned Productions Australia Pty (atd Australia corporation)
WWE Animation, Inc. (a Delaware corporation)
- WWE Animation Development, Inc. (a Delawaogporation)
WWE Libraries, Inc. (a Delaware corporation)
WCW, Inc. (a Delaware corporation)
WWE Properties International, Inc. (a Delaware ooafion)
- WWE Japan LLC (a Japanese limited liabitiompany)

- WWE Australia Pty Limited (an Australia lited liability company)

*Not in operation

Exhibit 21.]




Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM
We consent to the incorporation by reference iniReggion Statement No. 333-92041, 333-92376 argi1¥ 022 on Form S-8 and No. 333-
72536 on Form $-of our reports dated February 24, 2010, relatinthe consolidated financial statements and firsstatement schedule

World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc. and subsidigyiand the effectiveness of World Wrestling Entarteent, Inc. and subsidiaries intet

control over financial reporting, appearing in thisnual Report on Form 1K-of World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc. and suliaites for th
year ended December 31, 20

/s/ Deloitte & Touche, LLP
Stamford, CT

February 24, 2010




Exhibit 31.1
Certification required by Securities and Exchange & 1934 Rule 13a-14 as adopted pursuant to@e802 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002:
[, Vincent K. McMahon, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgainuntrue statement of a material fact or omigtade a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgta under which such statements were made, nteadisg with respect to the per
covered by this repor

3.  Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd, ather financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operat and cash flows of the registrant as of, andtfe periods presented in this rep

4. The registrars other certifying officer and | are responsible &stablishing and maintaining disclosure contiansl procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15()) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange Act Rt
13&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay

a) Designed such disclosure controls andgatores, or caused such disclosure controls anceguoes to be designed under
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidh®ubsidiaries, is made known to us
others within those entities, particularly durithg fperiod in which this report is being prepal

b) Designed such internal control over ficiahreporting, or caused such internal controlrdireancial reporting to be designed ur
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargardang the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial stateme
for external purposes in accordance with geneeadyepted accounting principle

c¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regdis disclosure controls and procedures and presémthds report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyeport based on such evaluation;

d) Disclosed in this report any change ia tégistrant’s internal control over financial refomy that occurred during the registrant’
most recent fiscal quarter that has materially e, or is reasonably likely to materially affettte registrang internal control ovi
financial reporting; an

5. The registrang’ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsédxh on our most recent evaluation of internal a@brdver financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacoimmittee of the registrast’board of directors (or persons performing theeden!
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and matenataknesses in the design or operation of intexoialrol over financial reporting which
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmhcial information; ant

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, tiratolves management or other employees who havgnéfisant role in the registrarg’
internal control over financial reportin

Dated: February 23, 20: By: /s/ Vincent K. McMahor
Vincent K. McMahor

Chairman of the Board an
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 31.%
Certification required by Securities and Exchange & 1934 Rule 13a-14 as adopted pursuant to@e802 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002:
I, George A. Barrios, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgainuntrue statement of a material fact or omigtade a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgta under which such statements were made, nteadisg with respect to the per
covered by this repor

3.  Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd, ather financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operat and cash flows of the registrant as of, andtfe periods presented in this rep

4. The registrars other certifying officer and | are responsible &stablishing and maintaining disclosure contiansl procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15()) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange Act Rt
13&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay

a) Designed such disclosure controls andgatores, or caused such disclosure controls anceguoes to be designed under
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidh®ubsidiaries, is made known to us
others within those entities, particularly durithg fperiod in which this report is being prepal

b) Designed such internal control over ficiahreporting, or caused such internal controlrdireancial reporting to be designed ur
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargardang the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial stateme
for external purposes in accordance with geneeadyepted accounting principle

c¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regdis disclosure controls and procedures and presémthds report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyeport based on such evaluation;

d) Disclosed in this report any change ia tégistrant’s internal control over financial refomy that occurred during the registrant’
most recent fiscal quarter that has materially e, or is reasonably likely to materially affettte registrang internal control ovi
financial reporting; an

5. The registrans other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdmh on our most recent evaluation of internal @drver financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacoimmittee of the registrast’board of directors (or persons performing theeden!
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and matenataknesses in the design or operation of intexoialrol over financial reporting which
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmhcial information; ant

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, tiratolves management or other employees who havgnéfisant role in the registrarg’
internal control over financial reportin

Dated: February 23, 20: By: /s/ George A. Barrio
George A. Barrio:

Chief Financial Officel




Exhibit 32.]

Certification of Chairman and CEO and CFO Purstant
18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant tadBe206 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the annual report on Form 10fkAorld Wrestling Entertainment, Inc. (the “Comp&nyor the year ended December
2009 as filed with the Securities and Exchange C@sion on the date hereof (the “Repor¥)ncent K. McMahon as Chairman of the Bc
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company and @eoh. Barrios as Chief Financial Officer of the Quamy, each hereby certifies, purst
to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuanedtidh 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, ttathe best of his or her knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934 as amended; a

(2) The information contained in the report fairly prats, in all material aspects, the financial caaditand results of operations of
Company.

By: /s/Vincent K. McMaho
Vincent K. McMahor
Chairman of the Board ar
Chief Executive Office

February 23, 201

By: /s/ George A. Barrio

George A. Barrio:

Chief Financial Officel

February 23, 201




